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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEEBERAVBRFEFENEEAREER
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited BERE (REE D AMHNREZESIER
consolidated financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, = WRKEEEY EHHE)EHT -

is set out below.

RESULTS ES

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“EZ-NhE —Z-N\F “E—tF NS —Z-1%
=B=+-8 =ZA=+-8B =A=t-8B =A=+-B =A=1-H

LEE IEEE HEE IHEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET TEL FET TEL
Revenue A 365,352 298,292 178,764 99,179 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE ER(EE)/R5A
YEAR 28,588 (175,728) 10,696 2,921 (393,709
Attributable to: FfE
Owners of the Company KAAEEA 28,783 (175,632) 10,696 2,921 (393,709)
Non-controlling interests FERER (195) (96) - - -
28,588 (175,728) 10,696 2,921 (393,709
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EERBEURFERER
As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —T-N\F e —T-RE —“T-1F
=B=t-R =ZA=t-B =RA=t-BH =ZA=ft-B Z=ZA=t-H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERr THET FEL TET FiEL
Total assets BEE 360,798 175,770 709,034 707,596 651,038
Total liabilities BaE 104,222 64,830 693,985 (703,233) (649,596)
256,576 110,940 15,049 4,363 1,442
Non-controlling interests FERER 309 504 - - -
* For the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, all currency figures shown in financial * HE-_Z-—AFK-ZT—"F=A=+—HLLF
statements are previously presented in United States dollar (USD$). B RUBHREM RO EESHTERINUNE
TL(ET)FIR »
The Group then presented in Hong Kong Dollars (HK$) by translated US$ to HK$ at REERBIEFETH BT (BT EEA.7.8 KK
1: 7.8, which is the same as the functional currency of the Group. 7T (BB BT EIHER) IR -
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Alpha
Professional Holdings Limited (“Alpha Professional Holdings”, or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present this annual report, containing the annual results of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Reporting Period was a year of uncertainty and surprises. The global
financial markets were volatile and overshadowed by political and economic
uncertainties. There were concerns that the global economy was slowing
down as a result of the escalating US-China trade war and the impact of its
catastrophic aftermath, and that interest rates would rise in response to the
US interest rate hikes. All these contributed to cautious sentiment among
our clients and consumers, and created a challenging market environment
for the Group.

In addition, continuously rising raw material prices caused us to choose
between squeezing our profit margins and losing sales orders.

With the joint effort of the Company’s management in actively
understanding the needs of the market and customers as well as the
dynamics of the raw materials market, and locking orders and arranging raw
materials ahead of schedule, we avoided the impact of price fluctuations on
the business performance of the mobile handset segment. In the Reporting
Period, the business and sales of the Company rose to a new level as
compared with last year, realising a positive development.

RESULTS OVERVIEW

For the Reporting Period, turnover of the Group increased to approximately
HK$365.4 million, representing a significant year-on-year increase of 24.6%
(for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately HK$293.3 million). The
Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 35.8% to approximately
HK$58.5 million compared with the previous year (for the year ended 31
March 2018: approximately HK$43.1 million), while gross profit margin was
similar to last year, ending up increasing by approximately 1.3 percentage
points to approximately 16.0% (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
approximately 14.7%).

The Board, after due deliberation, did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Period to preserve sufficient funds to meet the
financial needs of the Group.

OUTLOOK

The Group remains cautiously optimistic for the 2019/2010 financial year
although it expects to face the adversity from the changing consumption
pattern and economic uncertainties.

The global economy is expected to see mild growth, and the Chinese
government is likely to launch economic easing measures that should help
drive consumption. However, whether the US-China trade war will have any
further impact on the Chinese economy and raw materials market pricing
trends remains to be seen.
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The introduction of the fifth-generation mobile network technology (“56G”) is,
on the one hand, creating opportunities for the communication industry to
expand the scale of sales in communication technology and be exposed to
global investment opportunities of massive “Internet of Things” application
services which are expected to bring development and transformation
of various industries. On the other hand, there are quite a number of
challenges to be addressed by the Group before making its way to seize
the opportunities created by 5G, including but not limited to the enormous
cost of and rigorous demand on research and development. In view of
the intense competition in the communication industry and the rigorous
requirements of developing 5G, the Group has explored diverse business
opportunities in other sectors in order to diversify and broaden the Group’s
source of income.

In January 2019, the Company has completed the acquisition of Great
Empire International Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “GE Group”)
which specializes in application of biotechnology on the organism and anti-
aging, and prevention and treatment of cancer and chronic disease recovery
management. However, in June 2019, an independent auditor’s report
with disclaimer of opinion was submitted by the Company’s independent
auditor, which illustrated that the operation of the GE Group is not up
to expectations with inconsistencies in the documents and information
provided by the GE Group. In this regard, the Board is fully committed to
make inquiries into the findings identified in the auditor’s report.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue searching for business opportunities
in the domestic as well as overseas markets to diversify our business and
take a long-term perspective in formulating strategy by deploying capital
and people where we see opportunities to generate returns which exceed
our cost of capital, and focusing on those where our capital and people can
generate long-term value.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to Alpha
Professional Holdings’s management team and all staff for their effort
and contributions to the Group. | also take this opportunity to extend my
gratitude to the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and investors of the
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Xiong Jianrui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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The Board herein presents its report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Since the resumption of trading in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 30 November 2017, the Group’s business has maintained continuous
growth. It has achieved certain results in internal control and performance
supervision. The Board and the management were determined to properly
handle the incomplete books and records which existed before the
restructuring of the Group, and the same had been dealt with during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

The Group reconvened an annual general meeting on 21 August 2018 (the
“2018 AGM”). A resolution, which proposed to consider, confirm and ratify
the outstanding issues due to the failure of holding the 2014, 2015, 2016
and 2017 annual general meetings in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”) and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange (and the non-compliances
resulted therefrom) and to effect the matters required by the Bye-laws at
such annual general meetings, was duly passed as an ordinary resolution at
the 2018 AGM.

To better reflect the Group’s determination for pursuing future business
plans and development, the Company changed its name and logo as well as
its stock short name in early October 2018. Please refer to the 2018 interim
report and the announcement of the Company dated 5 October 2018 for
details.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the Company had actively explored business
opportunities in communications technology industry while strengthening
its advantages in telecommunication products and solutions; and had also
taken its first step in expanding its business into the healthcare industry.

Mobile Handset Segment

The Group is principally engaged as a mobile handset solution provider,
involving design, procurement of hardware components and assembly
services for mobile handsets, which are mainly carried out by the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mobile handsets distributed and
marketed by the Group mainly include 2G feature phones and 3G/4G
smartphones.

The mobile handset industry of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) is the most active but also impulsive industry with rapid update
and replacement and the industrial landscape also changes rapidly. As
the smartphone industry is shifting from a marketing-oriented era to a
technology and product-oriented era, the market of the mobile handset
industry is undergoing great changes. Various brands constantly launch
new products with more advanced and revolutionary technologies.
However, the prices of main raw materials for the manufacturing supply
chain such as glass, motherboard, internal storage and battery have been
fluctuating widely which causes immense pressure on the entire mobile
handset industry.

sion and Analysis
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As the domestic market has become increasingly saturated and major
manufacturers cannot achieve further breakthroughs in the PRC, they are
turning their eyes to foreign markets. Overseas markets are very attractive
to Chinese manufacturers and a globalised strategy has become a must for
the development of most mobile handset enterprises. India has been one
of the major sales markets of the Group. The consumer spending level is
generally low in the India mobile handset market and demand is mainly for
low- and medium-priced products, and in addition, the Indian government
has increased import tariffs on mobile handsets to protect its domestic
industry. Therefore, the Group is required to control costs in the supply
chain and make breakthroughs unceasingly to enable itself to secure market
shares.

Dubai is another major target market of the Company. Our main mobile
handset exports are low-end and mid-range smartphones with relatively
high unit prices. By launching mobile handsets that were consistent with
the local consumption characteristics according to the local demand and
by maintaining a good partnership with the local brand operators, our
performance in this market had thus continued to maintain growth.

The mobile handset business of the Group followed the market trend and
adopted a product strategy which aimed at promoting the development
and the expansion in the market of smartphones while maintaining a steady
growth of the sales of featured phones. This had resulted in excellent results
with rapid growth and elevated our business performance to a new level.

Healthcare Segment

Over the last year, the Chinese government continued to introduce a series
of policies to further the healthcare reform. The State Council of the PRC
issued a notice in August 2018, delivering major medical reform tasks for
the rest of that year. Such notice clearly pointed out that non-governmental
medical investment institutions were encouraged to join in efforts to
establish medical alliances, and social groups were supported to provide
multi-level and diversified medical services, which further stimulated non-
governmental investment in the medical sector. The supportive national
policies had given the Group more confidence and courage to seize the
opportunities for development of healthcare services in the PRC.

Therefore, in January 2019, the Group acquired (the “Acquisition”) 100%
equity interest in the GE Group (which is an advanced biotechnology
enterprise, focusing on the application of biotechnology on the organism
and anti-aging, prevention and treatment of cancer and chronic disease
recovery management) at the consideration of approximately HK$94.4
million, which was satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 50,842,000
ordinary Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of
HK$1.857 per Consideration Share, representing approximately 16.7%
of the total number of issued Shares as at the date of the allotment and
issuance of the Consideration Shares. The Acquisition had created a good
opportunity for the Group to expand its business into the healthcare market
in the PRC, broadened the source of revenue and laid a foundation for the
Group’s future growth.
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Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are set out in the
section headed Risks and Uncertainties under the Directors’ Report.

Environmental Policies, Performance and Compliance

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules, the Company will publish
an Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report within three
months after the publication of this annual report in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and Gross Profit

For the Reporting Period, turnover of the Group increased to approximately
HK$365.4 million, representing a significant year-on-year increase of 24.6%
(for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately HK$293.3 million).
The growth in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in sale of
mobile handsets and components to customers in Hong Kong and South
Africa. The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 35.8% to
approximately HK$58.5 million compared with the previous year (for the
year ended 31 March 2018: approximately HK$43.1 million), while gross
profit margin was similar to last year, ending up increasing by approximately
1.3 percentage points to approximately 16.0% (for the year ended 31 March
2018: approximately 14.7%).

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period were approximately
HK$29.2 million, up 79.4% as compared to the corresponding figure of last
year. The increase in general and administrative expenses was mainly due to
increase in staff costs, legal and professional fee, amortization of intangible
asset and rental expenses.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$28.8 million (for the year ended 31 March 2018: loss of approximately
HK$175.6 million). The increase was mainly attributable to net effect of
increase in turnover and gross profit and administrative expenses and
decrease in loss on assets transferred and debts discharged under the
Scheme of Arrangement and relevant expenses.

Variation between the audited and the forecasted consolidated income
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 as set out in Appendix Il
to the circular dated 25 September 2017

The Group recorded an audited profit of approximately HK$28.6 million
for the Reporting Period, which was similar to the forecasted profit of
approximately HK$28.4 million. The slightly difference was mainly due to the
net effect of the excess of turnover, gross profit, legal and professional fees,
staff costs, rental expenses and other general and administrative expenses
and shortfall of income tax.

Financial Guarantee Liabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded financial guarantee
liabilities of RMB22.2 million (2018: RMB Nil). For details, please refer to
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

on and Analysis
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and capital raising activities. The liquidity and financing
requirements of the Group are reviewed regularly.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$190.4 million (as at 31 March 2018: approximately HK$174.6 million)
and current liabilities of approximately HK$76.5 million (as at 31 March
2018: approximately HK$64.8 million) and total bank and cash balances
of approximately HK$34.4 million (as at 31 March 2018: approximately
HK$35.5 million).

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 24
December 2018 and 29 January 2019 in relation to the Acquisition (the
“Announcements”). Upon completion of the Acquisition, 50,842,000
Consideration Shares had been allotted and issued by the Company at the
issue price of HK$1.857 per Consideration Share.

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued Shares was 305,076,383
of US$0.16 each (31 March 2018: 254,234,383 Shares of US$0.16 each).

The Group reviewed the capital structure by using a gearing ratio,
representing the total debt which includes trade and other payables and
other current liabilities of the Group divided by total equity of the Group. The
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 29.8% as at 31 March 2019
(as at 31 March 2018: approximately 58.4%).

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions or Disposal of
Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures
Reference is made to the Announcements. Upon completion of the
Acquisition, the GE Group has become direct wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and the financial statements of the GE Group would be
consolidated into the accounts of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any significant
investments held or any material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures for the Reporting Period.

Number and Remuneration of Employees

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 178 employees, representing an
increase of 134 employees compared to the number of employees as at
31 March 2018 (as at 31 March 2018: 44 employees) with a staff cost of
approximately HK$15.7 million incurred during the Reporting Period (for
the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately HK$9.4 million). The Group
determines staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary
scales, individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages
including performance bonuses and entitlements to share options are
reviewed on a regular basis.
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Relationship with Employees

The Group adopts market remuneration practices by reference to market
terms, company performance, and individual qualifications and performance
with a well and organized management structure, no key and specific
employee would materially and significantly affect the Group’s success.

For further details of the employees of the Group, please refer to the
separate ESG Report.

Share Option Scheme
Please refer to the section headed Share Option Scheme in the Director’s
Report for details.

Charge on Group Assets
As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any charge on its assets (as
at 31 March 2018: Nil).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

As the Group’s bank balances and cash are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, renminbi and United State dollars, the Directors considered
the Group was exposed to limited exchange risk. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose
and the Group did not have any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31
March 2019.

The Group will monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from the
Group’s existing operations and potential new investments in future and
will implement necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate any significant
foreign exchange risk when and if appropriate.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had contingent liabilities of approximately
RMB41,070,000 (as at 31 March 2018: Nil) in relation to an enforcement
judgment. Please refer to the section headed Subsequent Events After the
Reporting Period in the Directors’ Report for details.

Capital Expenditure Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the financial statements amounted to Nil (as at 31 March 2018:
Nil).
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anagement Dis

OUTLOOK
2019 is a year of both challenges and opportunities.

Despite pressures from uncertainty and markets volatilities, global economic
growth is likely to continue.

The current spectre of the US-China trade dispute may reduce the demand
of consumer market. Nevertheless, the Chinese Government has introduced
a number of effective policies to prevent the crisis from escalating and
minimize the impact on the economic growth of the PRC.

While the Group is and intends to remain a conglomerate with diverse
businesses capable of generating sustainable long-term growth, the
Group will continue to divest from businesses which have reached their full
potential and deploy the capital released to existing and new businesses.

For the communication industry, following the introduction of 5G, cost of
research and development will be enormously increased as well as that
of sales and marketing. Hence, there will be growing tension to upkeep
the gross profit ratio and earning ability. In addition, due to the improper
operations of some of the enterprises in the communication industry,
potential problems might emerge affecting the supply chain system as
a whole. Therefore, the Group will act cautiously and largely focus on
risk management and internal control in order to maintain the existing
competitive edge.

For the healthcare segment, by entering into technical services agreements
with eight Level Ill Grade A hospitals across the PRC, as well as
maintenance of a strong medical research and development team, steady
income flow and efficient operation of the Group are secured. With a
view to significant and rapid growth of the healthcare industry, the Group
will capture the market opportunities by expanding the existing scale of
business cooperation with hospitals and medical institutions.

On the other hand, in view of the independent auditor’s report issued by
the Company’s independent auditor, in which disclaimer of opinion was
included regarding the inconsistencies in the documents and information
provided by the GE Group, the Board will make every effort to inquire into
the findings.

Looking forward, though uncertainties in domestic and foreign economic
conditions and market environment may have an impact on the performance
of the Group, the Group strives to prepare to overcome the difficulties and
to create value for our partners and Shareholders.
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The Company is committed to enhancing the standards of corporate
governance of the Group in order to safeguard the long-term interests
of Shareholders, customers and employees of the Company. The Board
continues to monitor and review the corporate governance practices as
adopted and strives to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders and
fulfil the commitment to maintain high standards of corporate governance
which delivers long-term success of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied and complied with all applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for providing high-level guidance, leadership
and control for the Company. The Board formulates mid and long-term
strategies, monitors operational and financial performance, reviews the
annual business plans and financial budgets, ensures good corporate
governance and makes key decisions of the Company, including but not
limited to those affecting strategic policies of the Group, major investment
and funding decisions and major commitments relating to the operations of
the Group.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently has five Directors
comprising two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Members of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report are set out as below:

Executive Directors:
Xiong Jianrui (Chairman)
Yi Peijian (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Cui Songhe

Khoo Wun Fat William

Lin Tao

The Company currently has three independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board, to bring an independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, key appointments and
standards of conduct. All independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years commencing from 30 November
2017 under the respective letters of appointment and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of
the Company as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. Among
the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Cui Songhe is a certified
public accountant in the PRC, who possesses extensive experience in the
accountancy profession and has the appropriate accounting and related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
continues to consider the three independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Pursuant to bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-laws, notwithstanding any other
provisions in the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Mr. Xiong Jianrui and Mr. Cui Songhe will retire from office as Director at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Director at the AGM,
and be subject to separate resolutions to be approved at the AGM.

Board Diversity

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board members. The
Company recognises the importance and benefits of having a diverse
Board. With a vision to promoting the efficiency of the Board and the
standards of corporate governance, the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”), when reviewing the composition
of the Board, considers a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, geographical
location, professional experience and other qualities in identifying suitable
and qualified candidates to be members of the Board in order to have
a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors and
ensure a diversity of skills, experience and perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management in this
annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed in that section, there is no other
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) among members of the Board.

Board Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Company held six Board meetings and the
attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings are set
out below:
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Meetings
Directors attended/held
EE HIE S BITEERRE
Executive Directors HITES
Xiong Jianrui (Chairman) tA' % (E£/E) 6/6
Yi Peijian (Chief Executive Officer) Bl (7rAae#) 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Cui Songhe NS 6/6
Khoo Wun Fat William i b7 6/6
Lin Tao iz 6/6
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The posts of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are
held separately by Mr. Xiong Jianrui and Mr. Yi Peijian, respectively, with a
clear and distinct division of responsibilities.

The chairman provides leadership and is responsible for ensuring effective
and smooth functioning and operation of the Board and the overall strategy
of the Group and establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The chairman also ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on all issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate,
accurate and reliable information in a timely manner.

During the Reporting Period, the chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The chief executive officer focuses on the overall management, operation
and business development of the Group and implementing important
policies and development strategy as adopted by the Board in order to
ensure a successful day-to-day management of the business of the Group.

This segregation of roles ensures reinforcement of their independence,
responsibility and accountability.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development Training

The Company has received confirmation from each of the Directors that he
had participated in continuous professional development training to develop
and refresh his knowledge and skills in accordance with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code during the Reporting Period. According to the records
provided by the Directors and maintained by the Company, the training
received by the Directors during the Reporting Period is summarised as
follows:
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to each of the Directors and all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Day-to-day management and operation of the Group are delegated to the
management of the Company. The Board provides clear directions to the
management as to its powers and circumstances in which the management
shall report to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance in respect of legal action against Directors. In addition, each
Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her
office or otherwise in relation thereto in accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Management

The management, under the leadership of the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses, implementation of the strategies approved by the Board and
general operations of the Company, as delegated by the Board. Such
delegation is closely monitored and regularly reviewed by the Board. The
management has to report to the Board and approval from the Board has
to be obtained, prior to any significant decisions or any commitments to be
entered into on behalf of the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the Nomination Committee and the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company to deal with specific
matters under defined terms of reference which are reviewed and updated
regularly to ensure that they remain appropriate and in line with the Group’s
business and changes in governance practices. During the Reporting
Period, the Board approved revisions to its various committees’ terms of
reference to comply with the new CG Code effective 1 January 2019.
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The list of members of the committees is set out in the section headed
Board of Directors and Committees in this annual report. During the
Reporting Period, meetings of the committees are convened as often as
necessary and the attendance records of the members at the meetings are
set out below:
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Committee meetings attendance/held

HEHITEEEFEAY

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee members Committee Committee Committee
ZEEg/HRE EREZEY REZER FNEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Xiong Jianrui BE®I g - 11 11
Yi Peijian Sz - 11 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Cui Songhe ENES 2/2 1/1 1/1
Khoo Wun Fat William e s 7N 2/2 11 11
Lin Tao s 2/2 11 11
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee,
consisting of two executive Directors (Mr. Xiong Jianrui and Mr. Yi Peijian)
and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Cui Songhe (Chairman),
Mr. Khoo Wun Fat William and Mr. Lin Tao), is delegated with the authority
from the Board to establish, review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy and practices of the Group.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines
as set out in the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to determine, with
delegated responsibility, or make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior management,
recommend to the Board the policy and structure on the remuneration of
all Directors and senior management to ensure that no Director or any of
his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration and review and
approve the compensation-related issues.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting
(the attendance record of the members at the meeting is set out in the
section headed Board Committees above) to review the policy and structure
on the remuneration of all Directors, senior management and the chief
executive of the Company, to determine the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, and the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. Particulars of the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Senior Management’s Remuneration

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration payable
to members of senior management by band for the Reporting Period is set
out below:

B R EIEE A
RBEEREATRHZTARIFEBALE B
HEHEREES S EBNBSREREKEZ
HEFIT

Number of Individuals

AE

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\E

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 3 3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee, consisting
of two executive Directors (Mr. Xiong Jianrui (Chairman) and Mr. Yi Peijian)
and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Cui Songhe, Mr. Khoo
Wun Fat William and Mr. Lin Tao), is delegated with the authority from the
Board to formulate and implement the policy for nominating candidates for
approval of the Board and assess the independence and commitment of
independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee follow the guidelines
as set out in the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, formulate policy and
make recommendations to the Board on nominations and appointment
of the Directors and succession planning for Directors, and assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held a meeting
and the attendance record of the members at the meeting is set out in the
section headed Board Committees above, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board. It had also considered the retirement and re-
election of Directors.

Nomination Policy

The Company embraced high transparency in the Board member selection
process. The nomination policy formulated by the Nomination Committee
aimed to ensure the Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee has been delegated to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and
appointment of new Directors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects in
this annual report and other financial disclosures as required by the Listing
Rules. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position on a going concern basis. A statement by the external auditor of
the Company in respect of its reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal control
and acknowledges that it has the ultimate responsibilities for overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing
basis. The Board also acknowledges that it is responsible for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group maintained the risk management and internal control systems
which are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or losses caused by judgment in
decision making process, human error, fraud or other irregularities. These
systems cover key controls over financial, operational and compliance
controls and, including but not limited to, risk management functions,
adequacy of resources of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions and an annual control and risk self-assessment process.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the
CG Code, the Board has retained Crowe (HK) Risk Advisory Limited, an
independent professional firm, as the outsourced internal auditor with a
view to facilitating adequacy of resources and quality of review to satisfy
the Group’s internal audit function as required by the Stock Exchange and
to assist the Board to perform annual reviews on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had updated its internal audit
charter which defines the scope and the duties and responsibilities of
the internal audit function and its reporting protocol. The Group had
conducted an annual risk assessment which identified respective strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks for the Group.
Based on the risk assessment results following a risk based methodology
audit approach, a three-year audit plan was devised which prioritized
the risks identified into annual audit projects. The annual review was
performed according to the audit plan with a view to assisting the Board
and the Audit Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Group had taken further
steps to enhance its risk management and internal control systems based
on some weaknesses identified during risk assessment and examination of
the internal control and had strengthened the implementation of all the risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Group has also established a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information that sets out the procedures in handling inside
information in an accurate and secure manner and to avoid possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group. Those procedures
mainly include the following:

o no Directors or employees shall disclose inside information to any
third parties. Directors or employees who are in possession of inside
information are obliged to preserve confidentiality and restrict access
to the information on a need-to-know and confidential basis;

o the Company is obliged to comply with the requirements of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”) and make disclosure of any inside information
as soon as practicable if the Board decides an announcement is
required; and

o any Director or employee shall report to the chief executive officer,
chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”) immediately when he/she is aware of any
potential inside information.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established,
enhanced and maintained by the Group, the work performed by the external
auditor, the internal auditor, and reviews performed by the management,
respective Board committees and the Board, the Audit Committee and
the Board realised that certain internal control deficiencies were identified
upon the Acquisition. The inconsistencies in documents and information
available affect the completeness and accuracy of the revenue generated
from the Biological Business (as defined below), and the corresponding
trade receivables balances as at 31 March 2019. In response to the
inconsistency, the Board has agreed to assign the Audit Committee
to review the matters and propose advice to enhance the existing
internal control system of the view to regain adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in the coming year.

Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are set out in the
section headed Risks and Uncertainties under the Directors’ Report.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee, consisting of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Tao (Chairman), Mr.
Cui Songhe and Mr. Khoo Wun Fat William, is delegated with the authority
from the Board to review and provide independent oversight of the financial
statements and reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of the external and internal audits.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines as set

out in the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the
financial statements and reports and significant financial reporting judgements,
effectiveness of internal audit function, risk management and internal control
systems, audit process, appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, arrangements which employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group together with the management of the Company, and
had reviewed and approved the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Reporting Period as set out in this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the attendance records of the members at the meeting are set out in
the section headed Board Committees above, to review the interim and
annual results of the Group and discuss and approve the relevant financial
reports, the effectiveness of the internal audit function, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, significant accounting and
audit issues, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, risk
assessment result and internal audit activities, and discuss the audit plan for
the Reporting Period.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee monitors the audit and non-audit services rendered
to the Group by the external auditor and ensures that the engagement
of the external auditor in other non-audit services will not impair its audit
independence or objectivity. An independence confirmation has been
obtained from the external auditor which confirmed that during the course of
its audit on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period and thereafter to the date of this annual report, it is independent of
the Group in accordance with the independence requirements of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Auditor’s Remuneration
An analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited for the Reporting Period is as follows:
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Services Rendered: EIRMHAR : HK$ HK$
BT BT

Audit e 1,200,000 750,000
Non-audit FEZEL 870,000 600,000

The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the above fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the external
auditor for the Reporting Period. The non-audit services mainly consist of
consultancy, taxation, review and other reporting services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board recognises that the Directors are collectively responsible for the
corporate governance duties. Such duties are, including but not limited to:

o developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group and
the Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and performed the
abovementioned corporate governance functions.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out
the principles of the Company in relation to Shareholders’ communications,
with the objective of ensuring that its communications with the Shareholders
are timely, transparent, accurate and open.

Corporate information dissemination is achieved via the following means:

o The annual general meeting of the Company allows the Directors to
meet and communicate with the Shareholders. The notice of annual
general meeting of the Company and the circulars with details of
each of the proposed resolutions and other relevant information are
distributed to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior
to the annual general meeting of the Company as set out in the Listing
Rules. At the annual general meeting of the Company, separate
resolutions are proposed for each of the issues and are voted on
by poll. The Shareholders can raise questions directly to the Board
in respect of business performance and future development of the
Group. The poll results are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

o Publication of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and
circulars.

o The websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, on which the

electronic copies of financial reports and the latest information of the
Group are available.
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The website of the Company provides the Shareholders with contact details
of the Company such as telephone number, fax number, email address and
postal address. The Shareholders may address their enquiries and concerns
to the Board via these means.

2018 Annual General Meeting

The 2018 AGM was held on 21 August 2018. The chairman of the Board
and other Board members and representatives of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited,
the external auditor, attended the 2018 AGM. At the meeting, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the 2018 AGM for each of
the issues, including re-election of each of the Directors, re-appointment of
external auditor, and approval of change of Company name, and voted on
by poll. The poll results were announced in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) setting
out the approach to recommend the dividend payment. According to the
Dividend Policy, the declaration of dividends is subject to the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, which will depend upon, including but not limited to,
the financial performance and position of the Company, business conditions
and strategies, and any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.
The Board may consider declaring special dividends from time to time,
in addition to the interim and/or annual dividends. The Board reviews the
Dividend Policy and its effectiveness as required to ensure the benefit of the
Shareholders as a whole is taken into consideration from time to time during
recommendation and declaration of dividends.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company in order
to enable them to make any enquiries that they may have with respect to
the Company. In addition, Shareholders can contact the share registrar
and transfer office of the Company if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company who have the right to
vote at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to request
the Board to convene a special general meeting for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If, within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board does not proceed duly to call such meeting, the
Shareholders who requested such meeting may themselves call a special
general meeting.

Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution are
encouraged to convene a special general meeting in accordance with the
paragraph hereinabove.

Investor Relations

For the Reporting Period, there was no significant change in the Bye-
laws which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is accountable to the
Board for ensuring that correct Board procedures are followed and that the
Board is fully briefed on all legislative and regulatory developments, and to
advise the Board on all corporate governance matters. Pursuant to Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary undertook at least 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.

Please refer to the section headed Biographical Information of Directors

and Senior Management in this annual report for further information of the
Company Secretary.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of mobile handset
solution and the provision of biotechnology and biological gene technology
technical services (the “Biological Business”). An analysis of the
performance of the Group for the Reporting Period by business segments is
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the performance of the Group, a description of the risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis of the development,
performance or position of the business of the Group and an indication of
the likely future development of the business of the Group are set out in the
sections of this annual report headed Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Report
and in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

To the extent necessary for a discussion of the compliance of the Group
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group is set out in the section of this annual report headed Corporate
Governance Report.

Details about the Group’s environmental policies and performance and an
account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the Group are set out
in the separate ESG Report.

Risks and Uncertainties

The following section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined as below.

Risks Pertaining to the Domestic and International Mobile Handset Markets
As the domestic mobile handset market has crept towards saturation, the
leading mobile handset manufacturers began to redirect their focus to the
overseas markets. Such redirection would cause an impact on the small-
and medium-sized mobile handset integrators whose businesses are mainly
export-oriented.

In addition to the fierce competition amid leading mobile handset
manufacturers, the increase in import tariffs by the Indian government has
moulded the Indian market into a more difficult business environment for
domestic mobile handset integrators.

Both may pose an adverse impact on the business and financial conditions
of the Group.
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Risks Pertaining to Foreign Currency

A substantial part of the business of the Group operates in the mainland
China, South Asia and Middle East. Accordingly, revenue and transactions
arising from the operations of the Company were generally settled in
Renminbi and United States Dollars which gives rise to a risk of translation
in the financial statements.

Operational Risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors relating
to mobile handset development and mobile handset related businesses.
Restrictions imposed on production chain affect the cost of major
components for various types of mobile handsets, such as the dramatically-
increased prices for glass, motherboards, memory and batteries, which may
have adverse impact on the financial condition or results of operations of the
Group.

Risks and Measures for Reliance on Suppliers and Customers

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest customers combined
and five largest suppliers combined accounted for more than 80% of the
sales of the Group and 100% of the purchases of the Group, respectively.

In minimizing the risk of a heavy reliance on a narrow base of customers,
the Group has been actively pursuing new potential customers in order to
broaden its customer base.

The Group has maintained long term relationship with the suppliers and also
established a strategic supplier system via strategic cooperation with key
component suppliers, forming a framework for mutual growth and support.

Risks for Reliance on the Group’s Professional Team

The Group depends on its professional team to conduct research and
development of biotechnology and biological gene technology as well as
provision of related technical services in the PRC. The Group’s business
may be materially and adversely affected if there is any unexpected
turnover. Hence, a detailed contingency plan is essential.

Subsequent Events after the Reporting Period

Receipt of Enforcement Notice

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 10 May
2019 in relation to, among other things, the receipt of an enforcement notice
((2018) B 03 %/, 2033 5% ) dated 29 April 2019 (the “Enforcement Notice”)
and an enforcement judgment ((2018) & 03 12033 5% 2 —) dated 28 April
2019 (the “Enforcement Judgment”) issued by the Shenzhen Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangdong Province (the “Court”) of the PRC.
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To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Directors having
made all reasonable enquiries:

(@  the current Board did not have any knowledge on the 2014 Judgment
nor the subject matters of the 2014 Judgment (the “Dispute”)
which happened prior to the resumption of trading of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange on 30 November 2017 (the
“Resumption”), until the Company had received the Enforcement
Notice and the Enforcement Judgment, nor was there any pending
or threatened litigation or claim in relation to the Dispute against any
other member of the Group prior to the Company’s receipt of the
Enforcement Notice and Enforcement Judgment;

(o)  Zeus Telecommunication Technology Holdings Limited and #E#E{E
#ei8 ORI BEBR A A ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company prior
to the Resumption; and

(c) none of the assets of the Company has been seized or frozen as at
the date of this annual report.

The Dispute is currently being handled by the scheme administrators of the
Company.

The Company has also engaged a PRC legal adviser regarding the
preparation of defence against the Dispute, the Enforcement Notice and the
Enforcement Judgment (the “Case”).

In this regard, the Company filed a lawsuit to the Court and on 10 June
2019, the Company was being notified of the acceptance of the Case by
the Court. The Company will make further disclosures on any material
developments of the Case as and when appropriate.

Future Business Development

The Group expects a stable development of its mobile handset segment;
while for the healthcare segment, the Group will review and optimize the
operational efficiency of the business.

As an enterprise which keeps on applying the principle of diversification
to its business and financial growth, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities arising from both the domestic and global markets, and thus
creating greater value for the Group and the Shareholders.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Details about the Group’s financial key performance indicators are set out
in the section headed Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual
report.

Environmental Policies, Performance and Compliance

Details about the Group’s environmental policies, performance and
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are set out in the separate
ESG Report.

Relationship with Employees

The Group adopts market remuneration practices by reference to market
terms, company performance, and individual qualifications and performance
with a well and organized management structure, no key and specific
employee would materially and significantly affect the Group’s success.

Details of our employees are set out in the separate ESG Report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 80% of the Group’s total sales for the year (of
which sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
31%); while the aggregate amount of purchases of the Group attributable
to the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 100% of the
Group’s total purchase (of which purchase from the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 100%).

Based on the available information to the Directors, none of the Directors,
or any of their close associates or any Shareholders (which owns more than
5% of the total number of issued Shares) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors is set out below and their biographical information are
set out in the section headed Biographical Information of Directors and
Senior Management of this annual report.

Executive Directors
Xiong Jianrui (Chairman)
Yi Peijian (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cui Songhe

Khoo Wun Fat William

Lin Tao

Pursuant to bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-laws, notwithstanding any other
provisions in the Bye-laws, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. Mr.
Xiong Jianrui and Mr. Cui Songhe will retire from office as Director at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as
Director at the AGM, and be subject to separate resolutions to be approved
at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company continues to consider the three
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Disclosure of Director’s Information under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules

The following is the change in the information of the Directors since the date
of the latest interim report which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Xiong Jianrui, an executive Director, has ceased to be a non-executive
director of Anxin-China Holdings Limited (shares of which were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1149) (“Anxin-China”)
on 20 December 2018 when Anxin-China was delisted, and has been
appointed as a non-executive director of Grown Up Group Investment
Holdings Limited (shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1842) (“Grown Up Group”) on 28 June 2019.
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Mr. Yi Peijian, an executive Director, has resigned as a president of
Shenzhen Warranty Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (FIITERTEEE
EEBRAT]) (“Shenzhen Warranty”) and has been appointed as a vice-
chairman and a director of Shenzhen Warranty on 1 November 2018.

Mr. Khoo Wun Fat William, an independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang New
Century Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1158) (“Zhejiang New Century”)
on 11 March 2019.

Mr. Lin Tao, an independent non-executive Director, has resigned as an
independent director of Guirenniao Co., Ltd. (shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 603555) (“Guirenniao”) on 27
December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to bye-law 164(1) of the Bye-laws, each Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he or she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance in respect of the liabilities and costs associated with any
proceedings which may be brought against its Directors and officers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the Directors and their respective associates had any direct or
indirect interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, total number of employees of the Group was
178 (as at 31 March 2018: 44). During the Reporting Period, staff costs
(including emoluments of Directors) amounted to approximately HK$15.7
million (for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately HK$9.4 million).
Remuneration of the employees which included salary and discretionary
bonus is made with reference to the results of the Group, the market as well
as individual performance and contributions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. A report on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section
headed Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Some of the transactions as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements under the heading of Material Related Party Transactions
constituted connected transactions exempted from the reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

*

For identification purpose only
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting
Period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Reference is made to the announcements dated 24 December 2018 and
29 January 2019 in relation to the Acquisition. Upon completion of the
Acquisition, 50,842,000 Consideration Shares had been allotted and issued
by the Company at the issue price of HK$1.857 per Consideration Share
to satisfy the consideration for the Acquisition of approximately HK$94.4
million.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed Equity-linked
Agreements below, the Company did not issue any new Shares during the
Reporting Period.

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued Shares was 305,076,383
of US$0.16 each (31 March 2018: 254,234,383 Shares of US$0.16 each).

Details of the Shares issued by the Company during the Reporting Period
are shown in note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements and on
page 10, respectively.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the Reporting
Period are set out in note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed Acquisition of GE Group and
Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were
entered into by the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at
the end of the Reporting Period.

Acquisition of the GE Group

Reference is made to the announcements dated 24 December 2018 and 29
January 2019 in relation to the Acquisition (i.e. the Announcements).
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A sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 24 December
2018 was entered into among the Company, Starways Global Holding Inc.
(the “Vendor”) and Mr. Wang Bin, an individual who is beneficially interested
in 52% of the issued capital of the Vendor and being the guarantor of
the obligations of the Vendor and the provider of certain warranties and
undertakings under the Agreement. Completion of the Agreement was
conditional upon the fulfilment of the following conditions:

1)

the Vendor and each of the Target Group Companies having obtained
all approvals required under the relevant laws and regulations,
which are required for the Agreement, the Acquisition and other
transactions contemplated under the Agreement;

there having been no breach of Vendor’s warranties;

the Vendor having complied with all the obligations, undertakings and
warranties under the Agreement;

the Company being reasonably satisfied that, there has not been any
material adverse change in respect of the Target Group;

the Company being satisfied with the results of the due diligence
conducted in connection with the Acquisition, including but not
limited to the business affairs, assets, liabilities and financial condition
of the Target Group;

there having been no orders of restriction or prohibition obtained
by any third parties from any government authorities which prevent
any parties to proceed with Completion; and the Acquisition and the
transactions contemplated under the Agreement are complied with
the relevant laws and regulations;

the Acquisition and the transactions contemplated under the
Agreement not being considered by the Stock Exchange as “major
transaction”, “very substantial acquisition” or “reverse takeover”
under the Listing Rules;

the Listing Committee having granted listing of and permission to deal
in the Consideration Shares; and

the Company having received the PRC Legal Opinion, Hong Kong
Legal Due Diligence Report, Financial Due Diligence Report and the
Valuation Report, each of which is in form and content satisfactory to
the Company.

During the Reporting Period, 50,842,000 Consideration Shares were issued
and allotted at the issue price of HK$1.857 per Consideration Share as fully
paid Shares for the settlement of the consideration for the Acquisition of
approximately HK$94.4 million pursuant to the Agreement.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “2010 Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. Eligible
participants of the 2010 Scheme include the Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) confirmed employees of the Group,
the controlling shareholders and their associates. The 2010 Scheme
became effective on 11 February 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Set out below principal terms of the 2010 Scheme:

Purpose

The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group, and to encourage participants to perform their best in
achieving goals of the Group.

Participants

The participants are any employee, director, adviser or business
consultant of the Company or any of its subsidiaries as determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) at its absolute discretion.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all share options granted or to be granted under the refreshed
mandate of the 2010 Scheme was 63,557,366 Shares (or 3,177,868
Consolidated Shares), representing approximately 1.04% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the 2010 Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued Share, unless approved by Shareholders.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under an option
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2010
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Remuneration Committee to each grantee at the time of making
an offer, and in any event such period of time shall not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Remuneration Committee at
its sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1 year for which an
option must be held after its date of grant before such an option can
be exercised.
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7. Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the payment period
The grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer
duly signed by the grantee with the number of Shares in respect
of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein together with a
payment or remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company
within 21 days from the offer date.

8. Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price of an option shall be a price determined by the
Remuneration Committee in its absolute discretion, but shall not be
less than the higher of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
which must be a business day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(¢)  the nominal value of the Shares.

9. Period of the 2010 Scheme
The 2010 Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years commencing on
11 February 2010 up to and including 10 February 2020.

As at 31 March 2019, the remaining life of the 2010 Scheme was
approximately 10 months.

No options had been granted during the Reporting Period. As at 31
March 2019, there was not any outstanding options (31 March 2018:
Nil).

Note: The information above is based on the latest available books and records of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during or at the end of the Reporting Period was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the Directors, chief executives and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company

Name of Director

B

Capacity
8]

RADBNRSG - HERDRESNTFAE

Number of
Shares held
FriER & B

Approximate
percentage

of the total number
of issued Share Mot
e 34T
5 SH= A

Mr. Xiong Jianrui
RRRIIH ST &

Interests of controlled corporation

R AEE S

177,965,114 (ote2)
177,965,114 %2
177,965,114 Mot
177,965,114 2

58.33%

58.33%

Mr. Yi Peijian Interests of controlled corporation
SIFREE REAE RS

Notes:

1. The percentage of the total number of issued Share is based on the 305,076,383

Shares issued as at 31 March 2019.

2. These 177,965,114 Shares were beneficially owned by Alpha Professional
Development Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“Alpha
Professional Development”), which, in turn was owned as to 50% by Mr. Xiong
Jianrui and as to 50% by Mr. Yi Peijian. Therefore, each of Mr. Xiong Jianrui and Mr.
Yi Peijian is deemed to be interested in the entire 177,965,114 Shares held by Alpha
Professional Development.

Long Positions in the Shares of the Associated Corporation of the

MfeE

1. ARFERBRTRGEEZEASLTIRER =T
—NEFE=A=+—HBB%17.2305076,383 ik

RTE °

2. %% 177,965,114 % f% 5 B3 Alpha Professional
Development Limited (7288 iz % &t & i Ak S
227)) ([Alpha Professional Development )
H25 A - M Alpha Professional Development
FH AR B3 58 4 I 5 15 8l 5k £ 9 B B 50% K
50% o AL - RRBIIG LA R DIERI T ESBHE
/&1 Alpha Professional Development #5745 2 28
177,965,114 IRAR (D A i it ©

RADBIEEEE (B8 R ESRBERG) B

Company (as defined in the SFO) RO FHFE
Number of Percentage in
Name of associated issued ordinary the associated
Name of Director  corporation Capacity Shares held corporation
EEEH HEEE S =4 FFERTERREE MEBZE<EIL
Mr. Xiong Jianrui Alpha Professional Development  Beneficial owner 50 50%
pEglER ST Alpha Professional Development Bz A A 50 50%
Mr. Yi Peijian Alpha Professional Development  Beneficial owner 50 50%
SIE8|TE Alpha Professional Development  E##H A 50 50%
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors, chief BEXEEEN RZTZ—NAF=ZA=1+—

executives of the Company nor their associates had any other personal,
family, corporate and other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons or entities, other than Directors
or chief executives of the Company, had or were deemed to have interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, or which were notified to the Company:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

FTERREHEMA L 2R

R-B—NF=A=+—F  ATALHER
(U FFEF AR AL BITRAR) RBRIA A
BT - EERRAEERBES RS
PIE 336 R E BEBEBRMA - RRTA
EADAMBSAAR -

RIRORAEERD 2R

Approximate
percentage

Number of of the total number
issued ordinary of issued Share Mot
Shares held BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity FrisBe 17 BRAD#A L
REREE 51 ZBERYE & 5 SH= AL
Alpha Professional Development Beneficial owner 177,965,114 58.33%
Alpha Professional Development &E#i#EA A 177,965,114 58.33%
Allied Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 Note2) 58.33%
A SEEBRAR IR A 177,965,114 (Hi=2) 58.33%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 Note2) 58.33%
BAaE (BE)ARAR RAE RS 177,965,114 (i) 58.33%
Lee Seng Huang Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 MNote2) 58.33%
PR REAE R 177,965,114 (fix2) 58.33%
Lee Seng Hui Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 Note2) 58.33%
FRE R E R 177,965,114 (i) 58.33%
Lee Su Hwei Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 MNote2)
FRE iR E R 177,965,114 (H2)

Shipshape Investments Limited  Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 Noted) 58.33%
Shipshape Investments Limited S AE R 177,965,114 (i3 58.33%
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Interest of controlled corporation 177,965,114 MNoted) 58.33%
FBERRAF e A 177,965,114 (Hi=3) 58.33%

Sun Hung Kai Structured Person having a security interest
Finance Limited in shares 177,965,114 Noted) 58.33%
BEEEBRERRAF FEROORERROAL 177,965,114 (i) 58.33%
Million Source Worldwide Limited Interest of controlled corporation 43,908,000 MNete 4) 14.39%
BRRKERAA R A 43,908,000 4 14.39%
Starways Global Holding Inc. Beneficial owner 43,908,000 Nete4) 14.39%
E R BIRE AR AR BEnEAA 43,908,000 (i4) 14.39%
Wang Bin Interest of controlled corporation 43,908,000 (Nete 4) 14.39%
T3 R EE 43,908,000 4 14.39%

First Cheer Holdings Limited Person having a security interest
First Cheer Holdings Limited in shares 40,000,000 Nete 8) 13.11%
BEROHREEZNAL 40,000,000 ) 13.11%

Sun International Credit Limited ~ Person having a security interest
KSEREEGRA A in shares 40,000,000 (Nete 5) 13.11%
BEROHREEGZNAL 40,000,000#% ) 13.11%

Sun International Group Limited  Person having a security interest
AGEBREBEGR AR in shares 40,000,000 Mote 5) 13.11%
HEBRMBOREEENAL 40,000,000 6) 13.11%

Chau Cheok Wa Person having a security interest
EleEE in shares 40,000,000 Nete &) 13.11%
HERMNNREERZOAL 40,000,000 6) 13.11%

Cheng Ting Kong Person having a security interest
BT & in shares 40,000,000 Nete 5) 13.11%
BEROHREERNAL 40,000,000 ) 13.11%
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Notes:

1. The percentage of the total number of issued Share is based on the 305,076,383
Shares issued as at 31 March 2019.

2. Lee Seng Huang, Lee Seng Hui and Lee Su Hwei are trustees of Lee and Lee Trust
which controlled approximately 74.95% interest in Allied Group Limited, a company
which held approximately 74.99% interest in Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited.

Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited held 100% interest in AP Jade Limited which in turn
held 100% interest in AP Emerald Limited. AP Emerald Limited held approximately
61.43% interest in Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited.

Given the shareholding structure discussed above and in note 3 hereinbelow, each of
Lee Seng Huang, Lee Seng Hui and Lee Su Hwei was deemed to be interested in the
177,965,114 Shares.

3. Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance Limited was wholly owned by Shipshape
Investments Limited which was in turn wholly owned by Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited.
Therefore, through Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance Limited’s having a security
interest in the 177,965,114 Shares, each of Shipshape Investments Limited and Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited was deemed to be interested in the 177,965,114 Shares.

4. Million Source Worldwide Limited was wholly owned by Wang Bin, which in turn
controlled approximately 51% interest in Starways Global Holding Inc.

Given the shareholding structure discussed above, Wang Bin was deemed to be
interested in the 43,908,000 Shares.

5. Sun International Credit Limited was wholly owned by Pioneer Frontier Limited which
was in turn wholly owned by Galileo Capital Group (BVI) Limited, a company wholly
owned by Sun International Group Limited. Sun International Group Limited was
owned as to approximately 47.05% by First Cheer Holdings Limited which was in
turn owned as to 50% by Chau Cheok Wa and 50% by Cheng Ting Kong. Therefore,
through Sun International Credit Limited’s having a security interest in the 40,000,000
Shares, each of Pioneer Frontier Limited, Galileo Capital Group (BVI) Limited, Sun
International Group Limited, First Cheer Holdings Limited, Chau Cheok Wa and
Cheng Ting Kong was deemed to be interested in the 40,000,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, there were no other persons
or entities, other than Directors or chief executives of the Company, had or
were deemed to have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of SFO, or which were notified to the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into letters of appointment or service
contracts with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
30 November 2017. As at 31 March 2019, no Director proposed for re-
election at the AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which was not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed Material Related Party Transactions
in note 34 to the financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Group was a party, and in which a Director or his connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March
2019 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in the section headed Material Related Party Transactions
in note 34 to the financial statements, there was not any contracts
of significance entered into between the Group and any controlling
Shareholders or its subsidiaries during or at the end of the year ended 31
March 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts concerning the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the
Reporting Period.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Reporting
Period (for the year ended 31 March 2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Reporting Period
are shown in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 March 2019, the Company did not have any bank loans or other
borrowings (as at 31 March 2018: Nil).

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has no reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 48 to 49 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the Reporting Period (for the year ended 31 March 2018: Nil). No interim
dividend was paid to the Shareholders for the six months ended 30
September 2018 (for the six months ended 30 September 2017: Nil).

Dividend Policy

The Company adopted the Dividend Policy setting out the approach to
recommend the dividend payment. Please refer to the section headed
Dividend Policy under the Corporate Governance Report for details.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
are summarized on page 4.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
(being 16 July 2019), based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as the auditor of the Company and audited
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Alpha Professional Holdings Limited

W

Xiong Jianrui
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019

* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS

XIONG Jianrui (“Mr. Xiong”)
Chairman and Executive Director (Age: 55)

Mr. Xiong has been the chairman of the Board and an executive Director
since 30 November 2017. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Xiong
holds a Bachelor’s degree in information engineering from The Xi Bei
Institute of Telecommunications Engineering. Mr. Xiong is a director of
Alpha Professional Development, and a director of each of Alpha Industrial
Holdings Limited (“Alpha Industrial”) and Smart Tone International Limited
(“Smart Tone”) (each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company).

Mr. Xiong has over 20 years of experience in telecommunication technology
and business management. He is currently a partner in Express Team
Holdings Inc., and a non-executive director of Grown Up Group. Mr. Xiong
was an executive director of China Uptown Group Company Limited
(formerly known as Techwayson Holdings Limited and The Quaypoint
Corporation Limited, shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2330) from May 2003 to November 2005 and
from December 2008 to June 2012, a non-executive director of Great World
Company Holdings Ltd. (formerly known as T S Telecom Technologies
Limited, shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8003) from October 2007 to December 2007, and a non-executive
director of Anxin-China from June 2017 to December 2018.

For the Reporting Period, Mr. Xiong was entitled to receive a fee of
HK$1,300,000 for being the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director.

Y1 Peijian (“Mr. Yi”)
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (Age: 48)

Mr. Yi has been an executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company since 30 November 2017. He is also a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Yi holds a
Doctor of Philosophy degree in statistics from The Xiamen University. Mr. Vi
is a director of Alpha Professional Development, Alpha Industrial and Smart
Tone.

Mr. Yi is currently a director of Qianhai Hongtai Fund Management Co.,
Ltd.* (RT/EL=ESEE AR A A]), the vice-chairman and a director of
Shenzhen Warranty, a director of Chengdu Zhifutong New Information
Technology Services Company Limited* ( 5 #0328 #1 & s B M AR IS B
72 7]), a director of Shenzhen Nanshan Liangwan Fund Management
Company Limited* CFYIIEILMERE S EEBRARF]), a director of TFKT
True Holdings, a director of True Yoga Holdings Ltd., and a director of
Sanjohn Investment Management (Cayman) Co., Ltd. Mr. Yi was the
president of Shenzhen Warranty from January 2010 to October 2018, and a
director of Shenzhen Huakong Seg Co., Ltd. CRYIZEZLFIR B M AR A F)
(shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000068) (“Shenzhen Huakong”) from March 2014 to September 2015.
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Biogaphicai Info
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For the Reporting Period, Mr. Yi was entitled to receive a fee of
HK$1,300,000 for being an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Company.

CUI Songhe (“Mr. Cui”)
Independent Non-executive Director (Age: 48)

Mr. Cui has been an independent non-executive Director since 30
November 2017. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cui holds a Bachelor’s degree in law from The Xiamen
University, and a Master’s degree in economic law from The China
University of Political Science and Law. He became a PRC lawyer in 1994,
a certified public accountant in 2003 and a certified tax agent in 2010.

Mr. Cui is currently the chief accountant and general manager of Beijing
Derun Certified Public Accountants (general partnership), and a deputy
secretary general in Beijing Zhongguancun Hi-tech Enterprise Association.
Mr. Cui was a deputy general manager in Daging Jianshida Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. from December 1996 to July 2002, and a director,
vice president and chief financial officer of Jingbeifang Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. from April 2004 to September 2008.

For the Reporting Period, Mr. Cui was entitled to receive a fee of
HK$180,000 for being an independent non-executive Director.

KHOO Wun Fat William (“Mr. Khoo”)
Independent Non-executive Director (Age: 38)

Mr. Khoo has been an independent non-executive director since 30
November 2017. He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Khoo holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Pure Chemistry from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, and a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in 2007 from The City University of Hong Kong. He
became a solicitor of Hong Kong in 2009.

Mr. Khoo is a partner of Khoo & Co., Solicitors, a firm specializing
in corporate finance and aviation practice. Mr. Khoo is currently an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang New Century, and an
independent non-executive director of Fameglow Holdings Limited (shares
of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8603). In
addition, Mr. Khoo is the vice-chairman of the Standing Committee of the
Convocation of The City University of Hong Kong, and a director of the
Alumni Association of the Raimondi College Hong Kong.

For the Reporting Period, Mr. Khoo was entitled to receive a fee of
HK$180,000 for being an independent non-executive Director.
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LIN Tao (“Mr. Lin”)
Independent Non-executive Director (Age: 47)

Mr. Lin has been an independent non-executive director since 30 November
2017. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Lin holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in management (accountancy) from
The Xiamen University.

Mr. Lin is currently an independent director of Shenzhen Huakong, and
an independent director of Green Seal Holding Limited (shares of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock code: 1262). Mr. Lin was
an independent director of Kweichow Moutai Co., Ltd. (shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600519) from
May 2010 to September 2016, an independent director of Fujian Torch
Electron Technology Co., Ltd. (shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, stock code: 603678) from June 2010 to December 2016,
an independent non-executive director of Portico International Holdings
Limited (shares of which were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 589) from July 2013 to November 2017, and an
independent director of Guirenniao from June 2014 to December 2018. In
addition, Mr. Lin has been a professor of corporate finance and principle
of accountancy of School of Management, The Xiamen University since
September 1999. He was also the associate director (from August 2004 to
May 2008) and the director (from May 2008 to March 2013) of The Center
of Executive Master of Business Administration of The Xiamen University,
and the associate dean of School of Management (from March 2013 to
November 2015) of The Xiamen University.

For the Reporting Period, Mr. Lin was entitled to receive a fee of
HK$180,000 for being an independent non-executive Director.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

KUNG Wai Chiu Marco (“Mr. Kung”)

FCPA (Practising), ACIS and ACS

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary (Age: 45)

Mr. Kung had been the chief financial officer of the Company from April 2017
to January 2019, and has been the Company Secretary since 30 November
2017. Mr. Kung holds a Bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The Hong Kong Lingnan University, and a Master’s degree in
business administration from The University of Wollonggong, Australia,
and a Master’s degree in corporate governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Kung is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
and a chartered secretary of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He has also registered as a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and a
Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong since 2007 and 2010, respectively.
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Mr. Kung was a financial controller and company secretary of Sanai Health
Industry Group Company Limited (formerly known as Wuyi International
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1889) from August 2006 to June
2016, and a company secretary of Hailan Holdings Limited (shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2278) from
September 2018 to March 2019.

MOK Yu Ting Leo (“Mr. Mok”)
CPA and FCCA
Chief Financial Officer (Age: 42)

Mr. Mok has been the chief financial officer of the Company since 1 April
2019. Mr. Mok holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in
Accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and
a Master Degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and a Master of Laws Degree in Chinese Business Law from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Mok has been a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since December 2004, and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2006, and was then admitted as a fellow member in December
2009.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mok was the financial controller and the
company secretary of Sino-Life Group Limited (shares of which are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8296) from March 2008 to
January 2018, and the chief financial officer and the company secretary of
Fullwealth Construction Holdings Company Limited (shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1034) from
January 2018 to March 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS Z-OBEE HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Alpha
Professional Holdings Limited (formerly known as Z-Obee Holdings Limited)
(the “Company”), and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to
164, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the
“Basis for disclaimer of opinion” section of our report, we have not been able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Comparative information

Our audit opinion dated 22 June 2018 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 was disclaimed, given the
loss of some books and records and serious doubts over the reliability
of the Group’s accounting and other records before the restructuring
of the Group, the directors of the Company believed that, it was almost
impossible, and not practicable, to ascertain the correct revenue and profit
or loss and the resultant assets and liabilities for the past years as included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Also, due to the
loss of some books and records before the restructuring of the Group, the
directors of the Company believed that it was almost impossible, and not
practicable, to verify the financial information as reported in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the past years.

Consequently, given these circumstances, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves that the internal controls and documentations provided by the
management for the purpose of our audit were effective and accurate in all
material respects. We were therefore unable to carry out satisfactory audit
procedures to obtain reasonable assurance regarding the completeness,
accuracy, existence, valuation, classification, disclosure and presentation of
the transactions and the assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company
as at 1 April 2017 and for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Upon completion of the scheme of arrangement during the year ended 31
March 2018, the Company recognised a loss on assets transferred and
debts discharged under the Scheme of Arrangement and relevant expenses
of approximately HK$198,661,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018. As
mentioned above, due to the loss of some books and records before the
restructuring of the Group, we were unable to satisfy ourselves that the
amount of assets transferred and debts discharged under the Scheme of
Arrangement and relevant expenses were complete and accurate. As a
result, we were unable to carry out satisfactory audit procedures to obtain
reasonable assurance regarding the completeness, accuracy and valuation
in respect of the loss on assets transferred and debts discharged under the
Scheme of Arrangement and relevant expenses during the year ended 31
March 2018.

Any adjustments found to be necessary in respect thereof had we been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence would have had a
consequential effect on the net assets of the Group and the Company as
at 1 April 2017 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year ended
31 March 2018, and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated
financial statements.

Non-compliance with IFRSs and omission of disclosures

As explained in note 2.2, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared by the directors of the Company based on incomplete
books and records and the directors of the Company believe that it is
almost impossible and not practical to ascertain the correct amounts.
Consequently, the directors of the Company were unable to represent that
the consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), or that the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited have been
complied with. Given these circumstances, which are fully described in note
2.2, there were no practicable audit procedures that we could perform to
quantify the extent of adjustments and disclosures that might be necessary
in respect of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Acquisition of Great Empire International Group Limited and its
subsidiaries

On 29 January 2019, the Group had acquired the entire equity interests in
Great Empire International Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Great
Empire Group”), whose principal activity is engaged in the provision of
biotechnology and biological gene technology technical services (the
“Biological Business”). The details of the acquisition are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. Revenue generated from the
Biological Business during the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$13,904,000 (the “Revenue of Biological Business”).
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During the course of our audit, we noticed certain inconsistencies between
third parties documents and information provided by the Group and that
we have obtained directly for revenue transactions under the Biological
Business. We were unable to perform practicable audit procedures to verify
the inconsistencies in the documents and information available to us, and
to carry out satisfactory audit procedures to obtain reasonable assurance
regarding the occurrence, completeness and accuracy of the Revenue of
Biological Business, and the corresponding trade receivables balances of
HK$14,751,000 as at 31 March 2019. Furthermore, the intangible assets
and goodwill arising from the acquisition of the Great Empire Group,
amounted to HK$110,943,000 and HK$48,430,000, respectively, had been
allocated to the Biological Business cash generating units. The fair values
has been estimated using the cash flows projections from the Biological
Business. Due to the inconsistencies in documents and information
available to us mentioned above and limitation in the scope of work, we
were unable to assess whether the fair values as at the acquisition date and
the recoverable amount of these assets as at 31 March 2019 are reliably
measured. There are no alternative audit procedures that we could perform
to satisfy ourselves as to whether the carrying amounts of the intangible
assets and goodwill, the associated amortisation expenses attributed to the
intangible assets and tax relating to the Biological Business were free from
material misstatement.

In addition, because of the inconsistencies in the documents and
information described above, there were no alternative audit procedures
we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to the occurrence and existence,
accuracy, valuations, rights and obligations, completeness, classification,
disclosure and presentation of the transactions and the assets and liabilities
related to the Biological Business. Accordingly, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to determine whether any adjustments
to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2019 were necessary.

In response to the inconsistency, the Board of Directors of the Group
has agreed to assign the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), to review the matters (the “Review”). The Review has not yet
completed up to date. We were therefore not able to review the substantive
evidences, if any, that might be contained in the report from the Review or
other matters arising from the Review, and there was no other practical way
for us to assess the Review, to perform our extended audit procedures.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect
of the above would have a significant effect on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 and consequently, the
Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related disclosures thereat in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Responsibilities of the directors of the Company and those charged
with Governance for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the
matters described in the “Basis for disclaimer of opinion” section of our
report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number PO0712
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REVENUE
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Loss on assets transferred and debts
discharged under the Scheme of
Arrangement and relevant expenses

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
Income tax expense
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF
INCOME TAX
ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF
INCOME TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET
OF INCOME TAX

L'ON
HE R MR A

ER
HpdA
HERDHMX
TTHFI X
HBER
BEEEL BRI
ZHEBIR T R EE
KRR ERZ
B8 K ARRE R X
BBADEF, (E518)
PSR
FRER,(F1R)

FREMP K
HIRR PSR

HERAGEEHNREE
BEMIER ¢
BEBINETSHE

FREMEEYE
HBRFEH

FRZERE(BE)
#E - HIRRPTEH

Notes

FEE

10(a)

2019 2018
—E-hE —F—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
365,352 293,292
(306,817) (250,186)
58,535 43,106
5,157 3,745
(949) (1,238)
(29,218) (16,284)

= (576)

33,525 28,753

- (198,661)

33,525 (169,908)
(4,937) (5,820)
28,588 (175,728)

111 -

111 -
28,699 (175,728)
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2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P =E FHExT FHT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR DT ATEEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: wAL(B8)
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Z =N 28,783 (175,632)
Non-controlling interests IR = (195) (96)
28,588 (175,728)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE UTATEGER
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 2EkE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: (F518) #2858
Owners of the Company KRBEB A 28,894 (175,632)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR MR (195) (96)
28,699 (175,728)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BREF (&) 14
Basic EHAK 10.9 (147.0)
Diluted i 10.9 (147.0)
The notes on pages 53 to 164 form an integral part of these financial E53F 164 B 2 MisE AL SRR 2 48R 20
statements. 2o
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Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Goodwill

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Cash and bank balance

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Financial guarantee liabilities
Tax payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liability

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE

W - BB RER

AR
HE

REBEE
&
JEUE 5 5RA B
H A e IR
B RIRTTHES

REBEE
&R E 53R R
H A e 15 FRIR
HBEREE
&R BEIR

REBEEFE
REERRBAR

FRBIEE
FEERIAAE
BERE
B
A
&t
ESNCIE 2SN
PEfE S
FRIE R AR

T

Notes
B3

15
16
17

18

19
20

21
23

24

27(b)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company

on 28 June 2019.

On behalf of the board

W

Xiong Jianrui

RE B i

Chairman

E

2019 2018

S —EN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
11,065 1,207
110,943 =
48,430 =
170,438 1,207
6,568 8,870
149,371 130,145
34,421 35,548
190,360 174,563
53,152 53,849
22,214 -
1,120 10,981
76,486 64,830
113,874 109,733
284,312 110,940
27,736 -
256,576 110,940
380,298 316,471
(124,031) (206,035)
256,267 110,436
309 504
256,576 110,940

RIZB-NFRAZTN\BEARREESH
R R TS

REE=S

Yi Peijian
S8

Executive Director

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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At April 2017

Change in equity for 2018

Loss and total comprehensive
Joss for the year

Open offer (note 27(o)f)

Expenses arise from open offer

Share subscription (note 27(oj{)

Capital inection by non-controling
interest of a Subsidiary

Share option forfetted

(Group reorganization (note &)

At 31 March 2018
and 1 Aprl 2018

Change in equity for 2019

Proft/oss) for the year

Exchange dffferences arising on
Hranslation of foreign operafions

Total comprefensive income/(loss)
forthe year

Shares issued for acquistion of
subsidiaries (note 27(b)(v)

At31 March 2019

The notes on pages 53 to 164 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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R-F-NE=A=1-H
R-E-)\$BA-R
“E-ERER2E
EmgH/(EE)
aEENRRELL
EXzE
Etive/(BR)4E

WERBATRZRR
(Horb)

RE-NEZR=1-0

Atibutable to owners of the Compny

KAARENER
Share- Foreign
based  currency Non-
Share Share  payments translation Other Reserve  Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve funds loss Total interest equity
U $2R
BE BhER B BE  ABBE  BEE: S it R REEE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tin Tén TR TR TER TER TER TER Tin T
7410 549,312 610 4841 - 15045 (645,809) 15,049 - 15,049
- - - - - - (115632 (17563 (%6 (75729
18,968 - - - - - - 18,988 - 18,988
- 382) - - - - - (382) - (382)
20013 - - - - - - 20013 - 20,013
- - - - 2400 - - 2400 600 3,000
- - (610) - - - 610 - - -
- - - (48.421) - (15,049) 63,466 - - -
316,471 548,930 - - 2400 - (77365 110436 504 110,940
- - - - - - 28,783 2,783 (195) 28,588
- - - il - - - 111 - 111
- - - il - - 2,783 28,894 (195) 28,699
63,627 53110 - - - - - 16,937 - 16,937
380,208 602,040 - m 2400 - (78582 256,267 309 256,576
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Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation
Amortisation
Loss on assets transferred and
debts discharged under
the Scheme of Arrangement
and relevant expenses

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in

trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase

in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Income tax paid

Net cash used in
operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Capital injection from
non-controlling interest

Interest received

Net cash inflow on acquisition
of subsidiaries

Net cash generated
from investing activities

KRS
BEiATRA, (ER)

ZHETEIIAT
ZEBRAER
RIREBZEE
EEEEa

EEELEEA

FERD(3Em)

JEUE 55008 & E A fE UK
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EE SRIE R M ER
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meEmE/ (TR RS

EfASH

RERBMA
REFHE

REERY
BEDE  BELRE

BRI E
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WHEM B AR Z
FRERA

REED
SRS

Notes

FEE
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33

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
33,525 (169,908)
(30) (7)

= 576

1,625 234
1,880 -

- 198,661
37,000 29,556
5,430 (7,482)
1,856 (96,469)
(42,434) 18,654
1,852 (55,741)
(15,269) -
(13,417) (55,741)
(5) (869)

- 3,000

30 7
12,187 -
12,212 2,138
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2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P =E FExT FHT
Financing activities RESEED
Cash consideration under the BT EIIET
Scheme of Arrangement ZHREREREBARX
and relevant expenses paid 5 - (188,990)
Proceed from issuance IRANEEAT 2 PSR IE
of share capitals - 269,001
Expenses arise from open offer ARABEELEZRX - (382)
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMES - (20,000)
Interest paid BRFLE - (576)
Net cash generated RLEEB
from financing activities i8R < F5 - 59,053
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBLSZLEY
cash equivalents CRA) /S8
(1,205) 5,450
Cash and cash equivalents FHNRERRESEEY
at beginning of the year 35,548 30,144
Effect of foreign exchange INEE RSB NS LT
rate changes, net 78 (46)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRRESEEY
at end of the year 20 34,421 35,548
The notes on pages 53 to 164 form an integral part of these financial $ 532164 B Z M At S5 H®EK 2 85
statements. 7 e
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company (Registration No. 39519) was incorporated in Bermuda
on 30 January 2007 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of
the Company is located at Continental Building, 25 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. Its principal place of business is located
at Room 2107, 21/F., Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 21 August 2018, the English name of the
Company was changed from “Z-Obee Holdings Limited” to “Alpha
Professional Holdings Limited” and the dual foreign name in Chinese
of the Company was change from “ B R B R A R]” to “F AT
AT ABR A R)” with effect from 2 October 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are (i) trading of mobile handsets and their
components and (i) provision of biotechnology and biological gene
technology technical services.

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) have/had been listed on the
Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the “SGX-ST”) and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE” or the “Stock Exchange”) since 21
November 2007 and 1 March 2010, respectively. With effect from
14 June 2013, the Company converted its listing status on the SGX-
ST to secondary listing whilst the primary listing status on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange remains unchanged. The Company has
sought the voluntary delisting of the Shares from the SGX-ST (the
“Delisting”), which took place on 28 November 2017.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Except for the matters referred to in note 2.2, and disclosures as
required under International Financial Reporting Standards (the
“IFRSs”), the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”) and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (the “IASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.
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2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 4 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Winding up petition, appointment of the Provisional Liquidators

and restructuring of the Group

On 4 April 2014, Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
(“ANZ”) presented winding-up petitions to the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “High Court”) for the winding-up of the Company and Max Sunny
Limited (“Max Sunny”). On the same day, summonses were filed with
the High Court seeking the appointment of provisional liquidators to
the Company and Max Sunny. The petitions and summonses were
also supported by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (“HSBC”). Following the presentation of the petitions, the
Company and Max Sunny engaged in negotiations with ANZ, with
the view to reaching a settlement in respect of the petitions and

summonses.

On 2 May 2014, the Company, Max Sunny and ANZ agreed on the
principal terms of settlement. On 7 May 2014, the deed of settlement
(the “Deed”) was entered into among ANZ, HSBC, the Company and
Max Sunny in full and final settlement of the loans due to ANZ and
HSBC. The Deed provided for an agreed amount to be paid to each of
ANZ and HSBC in five instalments. Upon full compliance of the Deed
by the Company and Max Sunny, ANZ would apply to the High Court

for the withdrawal or dismissal of the winding-up petitions.

Accordingly, the winding-up petitions were further adjourned to 2
July 2014 and the applications for the appointment of provisional
liquidators were adjourned on terms that allowed ANZ to restore
the applications on an urgent basis and without objection from the
Company and Max Sunny in the event that the Company and Max

Sunny failed to meet their obligations under the Deed.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Winding up petition, appointment of the Provisional Liquidators
and restructuring of the Group (Continued)

On 6 June 2014, the Company and Max Sunny failed to pay the third
instalment due in accordance with the Deed. On 16 June 2014, the
applications for appointment of provisional liquidators were restored
on an urgent basis and the High Court provided notices to the
Company and Max Sunny that the applications would be heard on 27
June 2014. At the hearing of 27 June 2014, the High Court handed
down orders appointing Yat Kit Jong and Donald Edward Osborn
as the joint and several provisional liquidators of the Company and
Max Sunny (the “Provisional Liquidators” or the “Joint and Several
Provisional Liquidators”). Accordingly, trading in the Shares on the
Stock Exchange was suspended at 2:37 p.m. on 27 June 2014 at the
request of the Company.

Pursuant to the court orders made by the High Court dated 2 June
2015, So Man Chun was appointed as an additional Joint and Several
Provisional Liquidator.

Since their appointment, the Provisional Liquidators have been
investigating into the affairs of the Group and have taken all necessary
actions to preserve the assets. The Provisional Liquidators have
also gathered information relating to the status of the Group through
meetings with various parties, including but not limited to Ms. Yang
Jian Hui (the former executive Director and the former chief financial
officer of the Group) and various former employees of the Group.

Furthermore, the Company and the Provisional Liquidators have
entered into agreement with a view to restructure the business of the
Group, details of which are set out below:

Restructuring of the Group

Given the situation of the Group, the Provisional Liquidators, with the
assistance of Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited which acted
as the financial adviser to the Company, sought to identify potential
investors with a view to restructuring the Company and submitting a
viable resumption proposal to the Stock Exchange.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Restructuring of the Group (Continued)

As announced by the Company on 24 July 2014, the Company
received a letter from the Stock Exchange, which stated that in view
of the court order made by the High Court dated 27 June 2014 and
the appointment of the Provisional Liquidators, the Stock Exchange
considered that the Company might have serious financial difficulties.
As the Company had not published the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Stock Exchange was unable to assess
the performance and financial position of the Company. Further, it
was unclear as to the operating status of the Company and whether
the Company still had a sufficient level of assets and operations
to fulfil the requirement under Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules. The
Stock Exchange therefore decided to place the Company in the first
delisting stage under Practice Note 17 of the Listing Rules due to the
Company’s failure to comply with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules. The
Company was required to submit a viable resumption proposal, which
could, among others, demonstrate its compliance with Rule 13.24 of
the Listing Rules, at least 10 business days before the expiry of the

first delisting stage, i.e. 15 January 2015.

As no resumption proposal was submitted before the expiry date
of the first delisting stage, the Company received a letter dated
20 January 2015 from the Stock Exchange and was informed that
the Company had been placed in the second stage of delisting
procedures commencing on 20 January 2015 pursuant to Practice
Note 17 to the Listing Rules. The Company was required to submit
a viable resumption proposal at least 10 business days before the
second delisting stage expired i.e. on or before 3 July 2015, which

should meet the following conditions:

1. demonstrate sufficient operations or assets to comply with

Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules;

2. address auditors’ qualifications and demonstrate adequate

internal control system; and

3. withdraw and/or dismiss the winding-up petitions against the

Company and discharge the Provisional Liquidators.

On 5 June 2015, the Company, the Provisional Liquidators and Alpha
Professional Development Limited (“Alpha” or the “Investor”) entered
into a framework agreement, which was subsequently amended and
restated by an agreement dated 5 October 2015, pursuant to which
the parties agreed on the principal terms of a proposed restructuring
of the Group with a view to resume trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange. The framework agreement and the amended and restated
framework agreement was approved by the Honorable Mr. Justice
Harris of the High Court on 26 June 2015 and 6 November 2015,

respectively.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Restructuring of the Group (Continued)

With the sanction from the High Court, Perfect Major Investment
Limited (“Perfect Major”) and HK Rich Technology International
Company Limited (collectively, the “SPVs”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, were set up after the appointment
of the Provisional Liquidators for the purpose of restructuring and
continuation of the business of the Group. It is anticipated that the
management team of the SPVs will run the business of the Group so
as to fulfil the resumption requirements of the Stock Exchange.

A proposal setting out the details of the proposed restructuring
together with the basis for the resumption of trading in the Shares (the
“Resumption Proposal”) was prepared and submitted to the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2015. However, without raising any question or
query on the Resumption Proposal, the Listing Division of the Stock
Exchange notified the Company on 31 July 2015 that it considered
that the Resumption Proposal had not satisfactorily demonstrated
sufficiency of operations or assets as required under Rule 13.24 of
the Listing Rules and it would recommend the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Committee”) to place the Company
in the third delisting stage.

Pursuant to a letter dated 14 August 2015 from the Stock Exchange,
the Listing Committee considered that the Resumption Proposal was
not viable and decided to place the Company in the third delisting
stage under Practice Note 17 to the Listing Rules. In arriving at the
above decision, the Listing Committee had considered that, among
others, the business of the Company in the Resumption Proposal was
insufficient to justify the Company’s continued listing.

The Company disagrees with the abovementioned ruling of the
Listing Committee (the “Ruling”) and on 18 August 2015 formally
requested the Listing Committee to provide detailed written reasons
for the Ruling. On 24 August 2015, the Company also submitted a
formal request to the Stock Exchange for a review of the Ruling by
the Listing (Review) Committee of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
(Review) Committee”). A review hearing of the Ruling was held on 17
December 2015.

On 29 December 2015, the Listing (Review) Committee decided to
uphold the Listing Committee’s decision and to place the Company
into the third delisting stage with effect from 6 January 2016 and
allowed a period of nine months from that same day for the Company
to submit a viable resumption proposal (i.e. 5 October 2016).
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Restructuring of the Group (Continued)

Accordingly, the revised proposal (the “Revised Proposal”) was
subsequently submitted to the Stock Exchange on 7 September
2016. The Revised Proposal was highlighted by the introduction
of a potential strategic investor, Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (A
7 B 1 B BR A Al) (“Tongfang”), one of the top 100 information
technology enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
On 28 June 2016, the Company obtained the letter of intent from
Tongfang, pursuant to which, Tongfang would (i) invest an amount
of HKDS.0 million into Perfect Major, a subsidiary of the Company,
in consideration and exchange for a 20% equity interest in Perfect
Major; and (i) subscribe for no less than 5% of the Company’s
newly issued Shares after the resumption of trading of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange. On 6 January 2017, a formal agreement was

entered into between the Group and a subsidiary of Tongfang.

*  For identification purpose only

Nonetheless, similar to the case with the Resumption Proposal, the
Listing Division of the Stock Exchange notified the Company on
26 September 2016 that it considered the Revised Proposal not
viable and recommended that the Listing Committee approves the
cancellation of listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange under

Practice Note 17 to the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to a letter from the Stock Exchange dated 14 October 2016,
the Listing Committee considered that although the Company had
made certain progress in its mobile handset design and distribution
business, the Revised Proposal still did not satisfactorily demonstrate
that the Company would carry out a sufficient level of operations or
have assets of sufficient value as required under Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules to warrant a continued listing. The Listing Committee
considered the Revised Proposal not viable and therefore decided
to cancel the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 31 October 2016 (the “Second Stage Ruling”).

The Company submitted a formal request to the Stock Exchange
on 25 October 2016 for a review of the Second Stage Ruling by the

Listing (Review) Committee.

Following the review hearing of the Listing (Review) Committee held
on 14 February 2017, the Listing (Review) Committee informed the
Company by a letter dated 22 February 2017 that it decided to
conditionally stay the cancellation of listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange (the “Decision”). The stay of the cancellation was for the
specific purpose of allowing the Company an opportunity to provide
all relevant information stated in the Revised Proposal within three
months from the date of the Decision to prove its resumption case to

the Stock Exchange’s satisfaction.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

Restructuring of the Group (Continued)

A written update in relation to the Revised Proposal was subsequently
submitted to the Stock Exchange on 24 April 2017. In May and June
2017, the Company and the professional advisers addressed various
queries raised by the Stock Exchange and finally on 30 June 2017,
the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange that the
Listing Committee had decided to allow the Company to proceed
with the Revised Proposal subject to the following conditions, which
should be completed to the satisfaction to the Listing Department by
29 November 2017:

(1)  completion of all transactions contemplated (including the
share consolidation, the share subscriptions, the open offer
and the group reorganisation) under the Resumption Proposal
and the Revised Proposal; and

(2)  the winding-up petitions against the Company and its
subsidiaries being withdrawn or dismissed and the Provisional
Liquidators being discharged.

The Company entered into a supplemental agreement and a share
subscription agreement with the Investor on 25 July 2017 in order
to effect the resumption plans as stated in the Resumption Proposal
and the Revised Proposal. On 25 September 2017, the Company
published a circular in relation to (1) the proposed restructuring of the
Company which included (a) the proposed capital reorganisation, (b)
the proposed open offer, (c) the proposed schemes of arrangement
of Hong Kong and Bermuda (the “Scheme”), (d) the proposed share
subscriptions, (e) the working capital loan and loan facility, (f) the
proposed placing of the Shares to management of the Group, (2)
the proposed application for whitewash waiver, (3) the proposed
appointment of the Directors, (4) the Delisting and (5) notice of special
general meeting of the Company (the “SGM”).

Following the SGM held on 16 October 2017, all the ordinary
resolutions were passed by way of poll. Further, as part of the
proposed restructuring, the meetings for the Schemes were also held
on 16 October 2017. During the meetings, the resolutions to approve
both the Bermuda scheme and the Hong Kong scheme were duly
passed with the approval of the requisite majorities of the scheme
creditors. The Schemes were also sanctioned by the High Court and
the Supreme Court of Bermuda on 31 October 2017.

The completion of the open offer and the share subscription also
took place on 27 November 2017 and all the resumption conditions
imposed by the Stock Exchange were fulfilled on 28 November
2017 (Bermuda time). Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange
resumed on 30 November 2017.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Delisting from SGX-ST

The Company had sought the Delisting of the Shares from the SGX-

ST for the following reasons:

(a) by virtue of having its secondary listing on the SGX-ST, the
Company is required to comply with the requirements set out in
Rules 217 and 751 of the Listing Manual (including such other
listing requirements that the SGX-ST may impose from time to
time) in addition to the Listing Rules. The Company believed
that the proposed Delisting would eliminate the additional
administrative overhead and costs of compliance associated
with such SGX-ST requirements (which, in its bona fide
opinion, outweigh the benefits of the Company’s secondary
listing on the SGX-ST), and would allow the Company to
streamline its compliance obligations, reduce its legal and
compliance costs and focus its resources on its business

operations.

(b) based on the restructuring plan as set out in the Resumption
Proposal and the Revised Proposal, the Company did not
intend to raise capital through issuance of new Shares on
the SGX-ST upon successful capital reorganisation and
resumption of its trading on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The Company intended to carry out its future
fundraising activities, if any, through the Stock Exchange; and

(c)  with the low trading volume of its Shares on the SGX-ST in the
past and the ability of shareholders to trade the Shares in Hong
Kong through stockbrokers in Singapore or in Hong Kong, the
Company considered it no longer necessary to maintain its

secondary listing on the SGX-ST.

For the reasons above, the Company believed that the Delisting was
in the interest of the Company as a whole. The Delisting took place

on 28 November 2017.

Capital Reorganisation and Equity Fund Raising Exercise

The Company, the Provisional Liquidators and Alpha had entered
into a framework agreement on 5 June 2015 as part of the
proposed restructuring of the Company comprising, among others,
capital reorganisation and an open offer. On 25 July 2017, the
said framework agreement was amended and restated as the new

framework agreement.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital Reorganisation

Under the new framework agreement, capital reorganisation entailed
share consolidation on the basis of every twenty (20) Shares of
US$0.008 each consolidated into one (1) consolidated Share of
US$0.16 each in the share capital of the Company (the “Consolidated
Shares”). The share consolidation became effective on 17 October
2017 and on the same date, the Company’s authorised share capital
was increased from US$10,000,000 to US$100,000,000, divided into
625,000,000 Consolidated Shares of US$0.16 each by the creation
of 562,500,000 new Consolidated Shares.

Share Subscriptions

On 25 July 2017, the Company and Alpha entered into an investment
share subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement 1”)
whereby Alpha had conditionally agreed to subscribe of 188,134,528
Consolidated Shares at a price of US$0.16 per offer Share.

On 7 September 2017, the Company and Tongfang also entered
into an investment share subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement 2”) whereby Tongfang had conditionally agreed to
subscribe of 12,711,719 Consolidated Shares at a price of US$0.16
per offer Share.

Both the Subscription Agreement 1 and the Subscription Agreement
2 have been completed on 27 November 2017 and gross proceeds
were of approximately US$30.1 million and approximately US$2.03
million, respectively.

Open Offer

On 20 September 2017, the Company and China Galaxy International
Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (the “Underwriter”) entered into
an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) whereby
the Underwriter agreed to underwrite an open offer (the “Open Offer”)
proposed by the Company on the basis of two (2) offer Shares for
every five (5) Consolidated Shares on the Open Offer record date,
Hong Kong Open Offer date for shareholders in Hong Kong; or
Singapore Open Offer record date for shareholders in Singapore
with standing to the credit securities accounts held with The Central
Depository (Pte) Limited in Singapore. The Open Offer involved the
allotment and issuance of 15,253,753 Consolidated Shares at a price
of US$0.16 per offer Share. The Open Offer and the Underwriting
Agreement became unconditional on 21 November 2017, and the
allotment and issuance of 15,253,753 Consolidated Shares at a price
of US$0.16 per Offer Share subsequently took place on 24 November
2017.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Use of Proceeds

The total gross proceed of the abovementioned Share subscriptions
and Open Offer was approximately HK$269.0 million (comprising
approximately HK$250.0 million and approximately HK$19.0 million
to be raised from the Share subscriptions pursuant to the Share
Subscription Agreement 1 and the Share Subscription Agreement 2,
and the Open Offer, respectively), and, after excluding the expenses
of approximately HK$35.7 million and other incidental costs to be

incurred, the net proceeds was approximately HK$233.3 million.

The net proceeds were intended to be applied as follows:

(i) HK$147.0 million to settle, among other things, (a) the costs
in connection with the issuing of the winding up petitions
against the Company, the costs in connection with petitions
for the appointment of the Provisional Liquidators and their
appointments in Hong Kong and Bermuda, the Provisional
Liquidators’ costs and the costs of the Schemes; (b) the claims
of preferential creditors of the Company; and (c) the claims of
the creditors admitted under the Schemes (collectively, the

“Scheme Cash Consideration”);

(if) HK$20.0 million to repay the outstanding amount due by
the Company to Alpha pursuant to a working capital loan

agreement; and

(i) the remaining balance of HK$66.3 million to be used (a) to
settle the cost associated with the capital reorganisation of the
Company prior to the said Share subscriptions (if any); (b) to
settle the cost associated with the Delisting; and (c) as general

working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2018,

(i) approximately HK$147.0 million was used to settle the Scheme

Cash Consideration;

(if) HK$20.0 million was used to repay the outstanding amount
due by the Company to Alpha pursuant to a working capital

loan agreement; and

(i) (a) HK$42.0 million was used to settle the cost associated with
the capital reorganisation of the Company prior to the said
Share subscriptions; (b) HK$0.6 million was used to settle the
cost associated with the Delisting; and (c) HK$23.7 million was

used as general working capital of the Group.

In summary, the net proceeds were fully applied as intended. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 25 September 2017 (the
“Circular”) for further information in relation to the Share subscriptions

and the Open Offer.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Incomplete record before restructuring

Due to the limited information available and most of the former key
accounting personnel of the Group have left without notice before the
restructuring of the Group, the directors of the Company were unable
to obtain sufficient documentary information to satisfy themselves
regarding the completeness of books and records and the treatment
of various balances as included in the consolidated financial
statements for the prior years and have formed the conclusion as
follows:

As the consolidated financial statements have been prepared based
on information that included the incomplete books and records
available to the Company before the restructuring of the Group, the
directors of the Company are unable to represent that all transactions
entered into by the Group for the prior years have been properly
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. In this connection,
the directors of the Company are also unable to represent as to
the completeness, existence and accuracy of identification of
the consolidated financial statements and the disclosures of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules.

Any adjustments arising from the matters described above would
have a consequential significant effect on the net loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018 and the net assets of the Group as at
31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”).

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Incomplete record before restructuring (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.3(f)(iii), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Incomes Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and measured
under IFRS 9/IAS 39 would be accounted for on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)(D)

(b)(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently whenever there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.3(f)(iii)):

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Electronic equipment

6 to 10 years

Over the lease terms
3 to 5 years

3to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d@)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the following basis:

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Customer relationship 10 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2019

23 EARZFHHBEME(E)

(e)

HEEE

WAREE EBRLBEB AR
W E R A A EM —HH S
BEEZERN BB HR%E
R Bz bk (B — TR —
BEXZ) BN REERE R
BEERN - BREDNEREZR
BEEEANTMEFEMEL
M wmZ L et AAHE 2R
R -

() HETFIEEEESE
REBRBESHEEEZR
KEb o e Ko [ ¥R 88 5 T
AEBZHEMBEED
BAREMRERTHEE
o WRRZBRED R
DR BRI EEET AL
BEzMEERINEAKER
= o

(i) KEHEEZER
fis 75 & B AR IR AT & TR A0 75
EEEFERAZE AEsg
RHEERANN SRS
Bt AEBam - BRIFHME
HEEE BRI RMAEE
EMEENREER - 7
BHEGERNERERA
T & T A SR AR 5B B0 48 A 5T
Do RARSEEELGE
HAEIET A B o



2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets

(@

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and
trade and other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in IFRS 15 (see
note 2.3(h)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

(@

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.3 EARSHHBEME(E)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

(Continued)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) H EEEEREEREGE)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

Policy applicable priot to 1 April 2018

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note (n)(ii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

Policy applicable priot to 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at fair value through profit
or loss (e.g. trade and other receivables). Under
the “incurred loss” model, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

Policy applicable priot to 1 April 2018 (Continued)

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss
was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed for
impairment collectively were based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Continued)

Policy applicable priot to 1 April 2018 (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that it did not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade receivable or
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful but not remote,
associated impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group was
satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “accruals and other payables” at fair value,
which is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued (see note (n)(iii)).

(a)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises
a provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees
are determined to be higher than the amount
carried in “accruals and other payables” in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation).
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since the
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured. The same definition of default and the
same assessment of significant increase in credit
risk as described in note (f)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, a provision would be
recognised if and when it became probable that
(i) the holder of the guarantee would call upon the
Group under the guarantee and (ii) the amount
of the claim on the Group was expected to
exceed the amount carried in “accruals and other
payables” in respect of the guarantee.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- prepayments and deposits;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwiill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2019

23 BEASFHERME(H)

H FEBEREERE(H)

(i)

(i)

ERHYBEIERNEEE
& (&)

b R=ZF—NFWAH
— H IR
RZZE—N\FWNA
— B W) &R
A AR BEIRIKE
RERANEBER
Ko (i) TEEAAREEH
RECHEBBAE
RE) (BT BERARE
R KR | FrE S
o AIEES T
W ©

HEBEEBIE

KRR MERREH
WER RSN ERE B L - LARE
EATEERDEBRRE
DR HZAERNRE
B8 (B2 A R RIRRSN)
TBEEHATED LR

b
- E - BEKRHE
- EARERERS;
-  EREE

- BB R

- ARFHBAMRE
FiT 51 2 5 Bt /B8 2 ]
HIRE °

i HRAER AR - Al
BHEENAIRE S EE
HbEt o o BhEE -
RAEERNETEER
BERTEE B F N ET
BEMS  HAMESHR
SEFETHHE (ERED
FHEERRELSR) ©



2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see notes (f)(i) and

(iD).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such sale
or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 2.3(n)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.3(f)
(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 2.3(i)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2.3(n)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.3(n)).
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

0

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2.3(p)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see note 2.3(h)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2.3(f)

(@)

Trade and other payables

A Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2.3(f)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECLs) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.3(f)(i).
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(U

Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based payments reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the valuation model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payments reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payments reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payments
reserve until either the option is exercised when it is
transferred to the share premium account or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated loss).
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(U}

(m)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax loses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(if)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the
fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities
are recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with note 2.3(n)(i). Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note
2.3(n)(i).
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Revenue
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the provision of services

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods and provision of services

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products or services.
If the products or services are a partial fulfiment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then
the amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of goods
was recognised when the goods were delivered to the
customers, which was taken to be the point in time when
the customer had accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(P)

Revenue (Continued)

(i)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.3(f)(i)).

(iii)  Income from financial guarantee issued
Income from financial guarantee issued is recognised
over the term of the guarantees (see 2.3(f)(ii)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into HK$ at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005, are
translated into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the foreign currency
translation reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a
foreign operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is translated at
the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition
of the foreign operation.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Related parties (Continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(o)

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent;

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
executive directors (the chief operating decision maker) for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

(a) Critical accounting Judgements

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed
in the tables in note 31.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EESHHERMAE (&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) A TEEENEZRR
(i)  Impairment assessment for goodwill ()  EEZEEFFE

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount
of a CGU was determined based on value-in-use
calculations which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period.

Details of impairment charge and key assumptions are
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EREEFHEETE B+
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disclosed in note 17. IEHRBEANITEAT -
(i) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and other (i) EWEZHIBEREMEK
receivables FIEFER S BEERE

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
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reasonable and supportable available without undue RAEBZBEENER
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical EREEEAEHAMND
observed default rates are reassessed and changes BERASAZ T FEE
in the forward-looking information are considered. In BraBERBREZANE

addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note 19.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Valuation of intangible assets and useful lives

The Group has made estimations and assumptions in
relation to the potential future cash flows of identifiable
intangible assets acquired as part of business
combinations. This assessment involves estimations
and assumptions relating to potential future revenues,
appropriate discount rates and the useful lives of such
assets. These estimations and assumptions impact the
profit or loss over the useful life of the intangible asset.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the
asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar items on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used
in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period based on
changes in circumstances.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment assessment for non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Current tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to income
tax in the PRC and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income tax.
There are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.

Write-down of inventories to net realizable Value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the required write-
down amount involves management’s judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will have an impact on the carrying amounts
of inventories and the write-down charge/write-back
amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key souerces of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(viii) Provision of financial guarantee contracts

Prior to acquisition of Great Empire Group (the
“Acquisition”) in note 33, one of the subsidiaries in Great
Empire Group, #YIHR @ EY T AR AR, Shenzhen
Zoken Bidoyg Ltd.* (“Zoken Biology”), had provided (i)
a financial guarantee to a bank, /8 EEEERITR
BAERRAFREY DT (“Shanghai Pudong Shenzhen”),
in respect of banking facilities granted by Shanghai
Pudong Shenzhen to ®IITIEREY BERFERER
A 7] (“Shenzhen Botai”), a former shareholder of Zoken
Biology, with the guarantee amount of RMB20,000,000
(the “First Financial Guarantee”); and (ii) a financial
guarantee to an individual lender in respect of loan
facilities granted to a company which Zoken Biology had
equity interests, namely &I BB £V R B R A A
(“Shenzhen Zhongkang”) prior to the Acquisition for the
loan amount of RMB2,000,000.

At both of the acquisition date of Great Empire Group
and at the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company were at the opinion that it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation arising from the
financial guarantee contracts as both Shenzhen Botai
and Shenzhen Zhongkang defaulted in payment of
outstanding amounts to the creditors. Both creditors had
applied to the courts and a court order had already been
issued to Zoken Biology to repay the defaulted liabilities
for the First Financial Guarantee.

Accordingly, the Group recognised a provision
of RMB18,921,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,051,000) and RMB18,993,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,214,000) at date of Acquisition
and at 31 March 2019, respectively, which was the best
estimate of the Group on the probable cash outflow of
the obligations under the financial guarantee contracts.

* For identification purpose only
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to
buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively to items that existed
at 1 April 2018 in accordance with the transition requirements. There
is no significant impact on the Group’s financial position upon initial
application at 1 April 2018. Comparative information continues to be
reported under IAS 39.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition approach are set out below:
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

a)

b)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede IAS
39’s categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification of financial assets
under IFRS 9 is based on the business model under which
the financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain
the same, except for financial guarantee contracts. The
carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 April 2018 have
not been impacted by the initial application of IFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any financial
asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1 April 2018.

Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with the
“expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in IAS 39.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

b)

c)

Credit losses (Continued)
The Group applies the new ECL model to the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables);

- contract assets as defined in IFRS 15; and

- financial guarantee contracts issued.

The application of IFRS 9 has not resulted in material additional
loss allowance against the Group’s accumulated losses at 1
April 2018.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described
below:

- Information relating to comparative periods has not been
restated. Accordingly, the information presented for
2018 continues to be reported under IAS 39 and thus
may not be comparable with the current period.

- The determination of the business model within which a
financial asset is held has been made on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that existed at 1 April 2018 (the
date of initial application of IFRS 9 by the Group); and

- If, at the date of initial application, the assessment of
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would have involved undue
cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been recognised for that
financial instrument.
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4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue and some costs from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
replaces IAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction contracts,

which specified the accounting for construction contracts.

IFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

There is no significant impact on the Group’s financial position upon
initial application at 1 April 2018. Comparative information continues
to be reported under IAS 18. As allowed by IFRS 15, the Group
has applied the new requirements only to contracts that were not

completed before 1 April 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes on previous

accounting policies are set out below:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of services was
recognised over time, whereas revenue from sale of goods
was generally recognised at a point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods had passed to the

customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point in time or over time. IFRS 15
identifies the following three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over

time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s

performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2019

P& PR 3 5T B PR B 35 R o5 R B | HLAE
=] (#&)

BB M ELEREISRRETFEN
ZWA

B R RS E RIS 1652 — A2
BERAERKATLENZRARET
B o BARREA TS R AR RIS 15 SRR
EHEEmARERBAEERANE
BRERTERIE185% - WA - ANETARRE
RENWE G TENBIR SR RIS
1158 BEAH -

BB 7 ¥R &5 22 RIS 16 5% IR | ARRINE
ENEURBERRE - BEERMBHR
REMEBRBRESRESHMELRA
LESRENTEE - 8 - KRHEL T
ENE e

MRZZ-NFHA—-BEREREHAK
SENFBRALBEALE - LKA
HAEBERERRE SRS 18RER -
IRIEBIR B T # RS RSB 15 SRR E -
REEKTREERAENR 22— \F
A — B ZREARTRAIAH -

FRBEEBREDNIEERTEDN
E—SFHERIIMAT

(@) UAEZBEFE
BIE - RHIREFTE £ RAR
—BRERAER - MHEEmE
ERRA— RN E MR B
B I O R = 5 P R By ) B

7
o ©

RIBEIFR RS ERIF 1655
BEPRGANANEmIR
TEEVE bR o AT RERRUR A - A
A — B R B S B iy ) HE R
BREITE IS LRIE 155k IEEE R
ok AR 75 B 42 4 BE B ) E RS S5 %
BT =EBR

) WEPREBENERE
BB LERERENME

G

(i) HEBELORAISZIHRET
BE(MEZIR)  MmZ
ERAVRENEERE
P REES

(i) HWEEBOHVELZHE
BERFEANEE BE
BEARHNITEORES
FTSER RSB IER X



APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under IFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that is considered in determining when the transfer of control
occurs.

Significant financing component
IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for
the time value of money when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in advance of revenue
recognition or significantly deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied such a policy when
payments were significantly deferred, which was not common
in the Group’s arrangements with its customers. The Group
did not apply such a policy when payments were received in
advance.

It is not common for the Group to receive payments
significantly in advance of revenue recognition in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers.

Where payment schemes include a significant financing
component, the transaction price is adjusted to separately
account for this component. In the case of payments in
advance, such adjustment results in interest expense being
accrued by the Company to reflect the effect of the financing
benefit obtained by the Group from the customers during the
period between the payment date and the date of revenue
recognition. The interest is expensed as accrued unless it is
eligible to be capitalised under IAS 23, Borrowing costs.

This change in policy has had no effect on accumulated losses
as at 1 April 2018.
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4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(c) Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under IFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods and services in the
contract, then the entitlement to consideration is classified as
a contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group recognises the related revenue.
For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated

contracts are not presented on a net basis.

The adoption of IFRS 15 does not have a significant impact
on when the Group recognises revenue from sale of goods/

provision of services and the amounts reports.

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance

consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part
of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity receives or pays

advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the
date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the related
item, the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt should

be determined in this way.

The adoption of IFRIC 22 does not have any material impact on the

financial position and the financial result of the Group.
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LOSS ON ASSETS TRANSFERRED AND DEBTS
DISCHARGED UNDER THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AND RELEVANT EXPENSES

Following the SGM held on 16 October 2017, all the ordinary
resolutions were passed by way of poll. Further, as part of the
proposed restructuring, the meetings for the schemes of arrangement
of Hong Kong and Bermuda were also held on 16 October 2017.
During the meetings, the resolutions to approve both the Bermuda
scheme and the Hong Kong scheme were duly passed with the
approval of the requisite majorities of the scheme creditors. The
schemes of arrangement were also sanctioned by the High Court and
the Supreme Court of Bermuda on 31 October 2017.

As part of the schemes, the Group underwent a reorganization
pursuant to which the Company transfer all its right, title and interest
in and to the Excluded Companies (as defined in the circular of the
Company dated 25 September 2017) to a nominee of the scheme
administrators at a nominal value. After such transfer, proceeds from
the realization of any existing assets of the Excluded Companies
distributed for the benefit of the scheme creditors. Under the scheme,
all the claims of the Scheme Creditors against, and liabilities of, the
Company discharged and compromised in full in return for a pari
passu distribution of the scheme cash consideration of HK$147.0
million and proceeds from the realization of existing assets of the
Excluded Companies.

As a result, a loss on assets transferred and debts discharged under
the Scheme of Arrangement and relevant expenses of approximately
HK$198,661,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018, being calculated as follows:
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5. LOSS ON ASSETS TRANSFERRED AND DEBTS
DISCHARGED UNDER THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AND RELEVANT EXPENSES (Continued)

Assets transferred: CEEEE
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABRZCREE
through profit or loss
Interest in assoicates REEE R R 2R
Trade and factoring receivables EUE 5 RRIEFKIA
Tax recoverable AT el R IE
Restricted bank balances TR BRI TAE R
Cash and other bank balances Re REMBPITHEER
Debts discharged: RIRER
Trade and bills payables ENESRIEREE
Other payables and accruals L pE AT RRIE K B R B A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTERITEE
Trust receipt loans FrEIEE R
Tax payables FEIBEIR
Relevant expenses: AEEAR X ¢
Restructuring costs and BN REMFAE
other expenses
Satisfied by: EEUTEMN :
Cash consideration RERE
Loss on assets transferred ZHFEET 2 EEEE
and debts discharged under RBRERZEER
the Scheme of Arrangement EEERX

and relevant expenses

As a result of the group reorganization foreign currency translation
reserve, and reserve fund included in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity approximately HK$48,421,000 and
HK$15,045,000, respectively were transferred to the accumulated
losses of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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LOSS ON ASSETS TRANSFERRED AND DEBTS
DISCHARGED UNDER THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AND RELEVANT EXPENSES (Continued)

Note:

(i) Net cash outflow arising on reorganization

Cash consideration ReRE
Relevant expenses paid EEEAE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by business lines (products and services). In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
executive directors (the chief operating decision maker) for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

1. Trading of mobile handsets and their components (“Mobile
Business”)
2. Provision of biotechnology and biological gene technology

technical services (“Biological Business”)

In view of the intense competition in the communication technology
industry, the Group has been exploring different business
opportunities in other sectors in order to broaden the sources of
income and to boost the business performance of the Group. The
Group commenced and developed the Biological Business during the
year ended 31 March 2019 and thus one new segment is resulted and
included in the segment reporting and no comparative information for
this new segment for the year ended 31 March 2018 is presented.

The Mobile Business derives revenue primarily from the sale and
distribution of mobile handsets and their components.

The Biological Business derives revenue primarily from rendering
the required biotechnology and biological gene technology technical
services to the hospitals.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s executive
directors monitor the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include provisions and trade and other payables
attributable to the activities of the individual segments and
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded
as including investment income and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses
on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the
Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, the executive directors are provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment sales), interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to price charged to external parties for similar orders.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s executive directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

Reportable segment revenue

Disaggregated by timing of
revenue recognition

Point in time

Revenue from external customers
and reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit
(adjusted EBITDA)

Interest income from bank deposits
Depreciation and amortisation
for the year

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current segment

assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

ATHREDBBA
R AR 85

BEFEERR

KEIEEP ZWAR
ATHE D ERA

ATREDIEF
(#&£FAZ EBITDA)

SRITF R B HA
FAHTE K

ATHREDMEE
FRFRDOBEE
i

(@)

DEREE - BEREE (B

ZRRERBANERIDKRETS
BHRZBARRBE_T—NF
R—ZE-N\F=ZA=+—HIL*F
B 2 BIR 5 B R wHE 2 #PR I A
AEERNRTESRHEBLE
BATHREDBZERBNTX -

2019
—E-NEF

Mobile Biological
Business Business Total
FHETK LY TS st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FET
351,448 13,904 365,352
351,448 13,904 365,352
42,605 5,895 48,500
4 10 14
(142) (2,891) (3,033)
139,736 214,668 354,404
- 172,720 172,720
9,136 84,645 91,781

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@)

Reportable segment revenue

Disaggregated by timing of revenue
recognition

Point in time

Revenue from external customers and
reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit
(adjusted EBITDA)

Interest income from bank deposits
Depreciation and amortisation for the year

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current segment assets

during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

There are no inter-segement revenue during the years ended

31 March 2019 and 2018.

e

6. ERIERE (&)

ATHREDBKRA
RRATER R S5

BB R

REANPEE ZWMARAFTRE D IFURA
BATFHRED SRR (LFAEZEBITDA)
IRITTFE R B A

FRYTE R

BFREDHERE
FRIETB D EEEL M

ATHREDHEE

DEREME - BEREE (B

2018
—T-N\F
Mobile Business
FHETS
HK$’000

FAET

293,292

298,292

32,560

o |

(234)

148,241

869

64,078

REE-_Z—hhFR_ZFT—N\F=A

=t —RIEFERILES FEEA
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue
Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Consolidated revenue

Profit

Total reportable segment profit
derived from the Group’s

external customers
Interest Income
Other income
Amortisation
Depreciation
Loan interest

L'ON
BT HREDBEA
HEH D A RUA

A A

= F
KERKEINBE, Z
EES k- ilkt

FLBUA
HAplgA
e

BERFE

2R E ()

(b) BATFHEDHBUA  BFRE

Loss on assets transferred and debts ~ ZHiEHEI7E N 2 EEEE
discharged under the Scheme of KRR ER 2 BB &%
Arrangements and relevant expenses  tEEAF X

Unallocated head office and ROBLABIIEE &
corporate expenses ERAT

Consolidated profit/(loss) before MR AR AT,
taxation (E518)

B BERABEBEZHE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FHT
365,352 293,292
365,352 293,292
48,500 32,560
30 -
116 -
(1,880) -
(1,625) (234)
- (576)
- (198,661)
(11,616) (2,997)
33,525 (169,908)

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets ATREDBEE

Unallocated head office and RAOBLBRIF R K
corporate assets EEE

Consolidated total assets e AEBE

Liabilities aE

Reportable segment liabilities BYREDPBAE

Unallocated head office and AOBEPER N
corporate liabilities (== =R

Consolidated total liabilities rAEBEBAE

Other items HihEH

Interest income from bank deposits RITIE F B U A

Reportable segment total BT HE D BLETE

RO BLHMEIE R B EAR

Unallocated head office and
corporate total

Consolidated total reueEE

Depreciation and amortisation FRYTE R E
for the year

Reportable segment total ATRED BT

Unallocated head office and RAOBLRIEE R BT
corporate total

Consolidated total REMEER

Additions to non-current assets FRAEZERBDEE
during the year

Reportable segment total ATRED LR

Unallocated head office and RAOBLRIFEE R BT

corporate total

Consolidated total LA MEEE
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(b)

BTHRED BB A BRI HE

B EERAEEZHR(E)
2019 2018
—E2-NF —=—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx THT
354,404 148,241
6,394 27,529
360,798 175,770
91,781 64,078
12,441 752
104,222 64,830
14 7
16 -
30 7
3,033 234
472 -
3,505 234
172,720 869
5 _
172,725 869




6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEBIRE (E)

(¢)  Revenue from major product and services (c) REFEEZREBEHEZBA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its URAEBREBFREETEERN
major products and services: BRISHIURA DA -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Mobile handsets and components FEEZH 351,448 293,292
Biotechnology and biological AR REMER
gene technology technical services R R 75 13,904 -
365,352 293,292
(d)  Geographic Information (d HEER
The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the INTAENAEEREGIINESZ
Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s WA R (i) NEBHYZE - WE X
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill. BE BEAERBEZMESD
The geographical location of customers is based on the T o 5 FIAE & 32 Fr iR 4R AR 15
location at which the services were provided or the goods SEWKEMTHE S o W -
delivered. The geographical location of property, plant and BE RSB ETIERERE
equipment is based on the physical location of the asset under ENEBRUENTE BMEMEE
consideration. In the case of intangible assets and goodwill, LEBms  DERBESESR
it is based on the location of the operation to which they are HIAS & FTEH T GE ©
allocated.

Revenues from

external customers Non-current assets
REMBEE WA FREBEE
Year ended 31 March At 31 March At 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
HE=A=1+—HBLEFE RZE—-NFE RZZ—N\F
—ZE-hEF —E-N\EF =B=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FET T
Hong Kong B
(place of domicile) (EEHE) 126,020 56,497 310 430
PRC i 13,904 1,373 170,128 777
Bangladesh Eapllika 7,110 584 - -
Dubai HE 100,138 92,223 - -
Cyprus ETHRKHT 1,424 - - -
Ethiopia WREMLL T 1,764 - - -
Mexico =raf 2,621 - - -
Poland i ] 2,030 - - -
Romania #Hed 2 - - -
India 0NE 52,460 109,841 - -
Nepal IENEL ] - 1,065 - -
Pakistan A HT 8 5,733 30,561 - -
South Africa [BE!S 38,298 410 - -
Russia HZEHT 6,699 - - -
Vietnam fiEa) 5,350 - - -
Greece %8 9 738 - -
Others HAh 1,790 - - -
365,352 293,292 170,438 1,207
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e

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing 10% or more of the total
revenue of the Group is as follows:

Revenue from trading of mobile KEEEFHEEZH
handsets and their components ZUWA
— Customer A =l
— Customer B —-BFZ
- Customer C —-BFR
- Customer D -BFT
- Customer E —-BFKX
— Customer F —-EFC
Note:

For the year ended 31 March 2018, as disclosed in note 2.2,
on the basis that relevant books and records are either lost
or are incomplete before the restructuring of the Group, no
representation is made by the Board as to the completeness
and accuracy of the disclosures in segment reporting as of the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10%
or more of the Group’s total revenue during the
corresponding year.

ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2019

4

BBIRE ()

&

() FHEIEEFZEHR
KEREBAEEBKA 10% KA

ERERZBAIT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
100,138 92,223
89,402 56,394
38,298 N/A* 38 A *
36,617 -
N/A* RE A * 75,224
N/A* RE R * 30,561
Bk -
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REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the trading of mobile
handsets and their components and provision of biotechnology and
biological gene technology technical services.

Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major
products or service lines is as follows:

Revenue from contract with & BRI 1 2R
customers within the scope F15EEMRA
of IFRS 15 BEREAKZBA
Disaggregated by major products BEXZERIREERE S
or service lines
— Sale of mobile handsets —HEFHRLRTMH
and components
— Sale of biotechnology and biological —EEAYMBE REY
gene technology technical services AR R EMT R

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method.
Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and was
prepared in accordance with IAS 18.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the
timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets are
disclosed in notes 6(a) and 6(d) respectively.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income on financial assets REHER AT EZ EMEE
measured at amortised cost F B A
— bank interest income —iRITF BUA

Service income BRASUA

Sundry income WA

Foreign exchange gain, net PE 5 25 5 58

A

AEEMEREBREEFREEH/E
PIRHR R R R Bl AR

LON-[vi)
BEZEMERBERNB D Z2REEP
BRIZBAT

2019 2018
—E-h& —E N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR Fiit
351,448 293,292
13,904 -
365,352 293,292

fia: ARERERRFFEEAERERBK
MBS EAFE 165 o RIFZTTE - L
BEMARTUAEY - AERBEEKE
FHERIE 18RS -

Sl e B R B TR 5 2 2R
AEF A0 2D BIR K EE6(@) £ 6()
B -

HABWA
2019 2018
—E-RE —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
30 7
5,008 3,000
11 254
108 484
5,157 3,745

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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9 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBLADER], (E1R)

AEEORBANET](B18) BHKRIA

T&E:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER THBT
- 576

- 576

807 275
14,872 9,077
15,679 9,352
306,817 250,186
1,200 750
870 600
1,625 234
1,880 -
2,939 1,576
1,141 66

- 198,661

Notes
Hiz
(@) Finance costs: @  BEMA:
Interest on other borrowings HibEE 2 F8
Total interest expense on RIEDAEFA
financial liabilities not at fair Balems
value through profit or loss EF A% 88
(b)  Staff costs: (including b)) EBIXA(BEEZ
directors’ emoluments) )
Contributions to defined TEEMFURIRGTE
contribution retirement plans 2R
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¢ TAREMER
(©)  Otheritems: ©)  EfiEE :
Cost of inventories (note i) FERA (M)
Auditors’ remuneration et Gl
- audit services ~GEREB
- non-audit services —ERERE
Depreciation for property, plant ¥ BERIETE 15
and equipment (notes i and i) (3T Rii)
Amortisation for intangible assets BREERH 16
Operating lease charges: meEER
minimum lease payments FERERRK
Research and development R R AR (Hii)
costs (note ii)
Loss on assets transferred THHEAET 282 5
and debts discharged under BERBRESRZ
the Scheme of Arrangement BEREBRZ
and relevant expenses
Notes:
i) Cost of inventories include depreciation of HK$609,000 (2018: Nil) and staff

cost of HK$747,000 (2018: Nil), which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above.

ii) Included in research and development costs are depreciation of HK$315,000
(2018: Nil) and staff costs of HK$550,000 (2018: Nil), which are also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.
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10.

INCOME TAX

(@)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Current tax: BNVEARRIA -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ~ —FRE B S
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) —FRFRADPEMREH
for the year (TE¥EmMBRD
Deferred tax: IRIERIIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B 2 S8 H) 7 4 M [0
differences (note 24(a)) (Bt7E24(a))
Income tax expenses BB

Note:

(i

(i)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is calculated at
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, taking into account a reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR
Government of 756% of the tax payable for the year of assessment
2018-19 subject to a maximum reduction of HK$20,000 for each
business (2018: a maximum reduction of HK$30,000 was granted
for the year of assessment 2017-18 and was taken into account in
calculating the provision for 2018).

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime (the “Two-tiered
Profits Tax Rate Regime”). The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day.

Under the Two-tiered Profits Tax Rate Regime, the first HK$2 million
of the assessable profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25% and the assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the Two-tiered
Profits Tax Rate Regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at 25% (2018: 25%).
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction of

Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.

10. FiEH

@ REBAERNSE
2019 2018
S —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
5,274 5,820
133 -
(470) -
4,937 5,820

BifeE:

(i)

(i)

ZE-NENBBENERDIRF A
FERTURFABL K 16.5% (ZF—/\F :
16.5%) T HRE M - WAt REAFRBUF
W —ZE—\E-NFRBFE75%H
FERBLE - BIREH & Z MR 20,0008
T(ZE—N\F: ZT—+E-)\FR
B ERZHE30,00087T  sHHE-F
—N\EFREREAR) -

RZZ—N\E=ZA=+—8 " FB A
R T —EEBRB (B (F75H)
IEBIER) (MEBIRR]) « HSIARIEH
AR (T RSB R ARSI D) o ZIRHIER
R-ZE—-N\E=ZA-+)\BEFERAE
FERARZAERERTIE -

RBEFGHMESG  AEREEEREN
BHE2HEBITERTOENLA8.25% &Y
BEREH - BB 2 B &8I 2 ERBS
FIHIA16.6% R0 EETL - THAFEH
PR AR 16 B A Y S B R A 0 S A AR IR
16.5% MR — Tt K BB -

v 50 B} /B A R 78 1R 25% FY B SR A v
EMEH (ZFT—/\F : 25%) -

ARERRE-T-NER-F-NF
SASt-ALFRBAMMERER
R LR R AR A AP -

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ADER, (E18)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before REBBRRANER,
taxation, calculated at the rates (BB AR R E
applicable to profits/(loss) in the ZBFBEDER,(EiE)
countries concerned ZHEHIE

Effect of different tax rates arising ELBHMRBEAERRER
from other tax jurisdictions TRAMERTE

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAJHIHBI % 2 T FE 52 2

Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBBAZ BRI E

Tax effect of concessionary enjoyed MEARZENER
by subsidiaries b

Tax effect of tax losses/deductible I R 2 R EE,
temporary differences not AHNKREREER 2
recognised Mg E

Utilisation of tax losses B IEREE

Income tax expenses FrisfiA®

For the year ended 31 March 2018, as disclosed in note 2.2,
on the basis that relevant books and records are either lost
or are incomplete before the restructuring of the Group, no
representation is made by the Board as to the completeness
and accuracy of the income tax as of the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements.
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(b) FEEZHESIERN(FE)Z

BB AR E 2R -
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —Z-N\EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
33,525 (169,908)
5,532 (27,997)
335 _
665 123,769
(1,027) (90,967)
(185) (30)
58 1,045
(441) -
4,937 5,820

HE_Z-N\F=A=+—HIk
FE - BRI 2PREE - ENE
R4 B S AR A AR RE AR R AR ER T
EEREARRTTE  BEME
WEGEEMBHRERZA  EFE
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11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are

as follows:

Executive directors HITES
Xiong Jianrui (Chairman) BERIIE (E8)
Vi Peijian SR
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR #E)
Independent BAFHTES
non-executive directors
Lin Tao wE
Khoo Wun Tat William %
Cui Songhe EE

11. EZMS
IRARCE BN A1) 383(1) (& L A )
(BEEEFSER) RO 2 BT
EEHMAT ¢
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2019
in kind contributions Total
Fees %< - EBL Bonuses ERER —E—HE
wBe REYIZ T4 sTEIER w@Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THERT FHET FHET THERT
- 1,200 100 18 1,318
- 1,200 100 18 1,318
180 - - - 180
180 - - - 180
180 - - - 180
540 2,400 200 36 3,176

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Executive directors

Xiong Jianrui

(Appointed on 30 November 2017)
Vi Peijian

(Appointed on 30 November 2017)
Lai Hui

(Resigned on 30 November 2017)
Yang Jian Hui

(Resigned on 30 November 2017)
Chen Ling

(Resigned on 30 November 2017)

Independent non-executive directors

Lin Tao

(Appointed on 30 November 2017)
Khoo Wun Tat William

(Appointed on 30 November 2017)
Cui Songhe

(Appointed on 30 November 2017)
Liu Jintao

(Resigned on 30 November 2017)
Tsang Hin Fun, Anthony

(Resigned on 30 November 2017)

Note:

S

g alin
(R=F—tE+-A=THEZM)
IRl
(RZF—tFE+-A=THEZRHE)
(R-F-tE+-A=T+AEE)
BRIZ
(R=F—LFT-A=THEMH)
BR
(RZF—LE+-A=THEHE)

BuEHiTES
HE
(R=Z—t5+-A=tRERN)
%
(R=T—t5+—F=tRHEZHN)
BB

(RF-tE+-A=THEZE)
e

(R=F—tE+—A=THEL)
s

(R=F—tFE+-A=THEE)

|

11. ZEZB€ (8)

Mr. Yi Peijian is the director and the chief executive of the Company and is responsible
for the Company’s day to day management and the overall activities.

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2018
in kind contributions Total
Fees  H& - 28 Bonuses BHRRH ZE-N\F
we  REWFE bzl R ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TEL ThL ThL T
300 - - - 300
300 - - - 300
480 - - - 480
320 - - - 320
320 - - - 320
60 - - - 60
60 - - - 60
60 - - - 60
160 - - - 160
160 - - - 160
2,220 - - - 2,220
Bt &
SERITERARAEERITRESR - AEAR
AIHEER LB -
HE-_Z—)\ER_T-hEF=A=+—HIM

These was no arrangement under which directors and chief executive have waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the two years ended 31 March 2018 and

2019.
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12.

13.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 2 (2018: 2) are
directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note
11. The aggregate of the emoluments of the remaining 3 (2018: 3)
individuals were as follows:

HelAEmHe
RIRTEFIFH IR

Salaries and other emoluments
Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

The emoluments of the 3 (2018: 3) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

HK$ BT
Nil-1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

12, HEHFM2ERAL

EREZ&SHMENALTES 2% (=
T—\F  2R) REARAESE - L
ERFIIHEE - RT3 (ZF—N
F 3R ER AL 2 FBNEERNT

2019 2018
—E-NF —=—N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
2,674 2,495

17 =

2,691 2,495

Z3H(ZF—)\F : 3R) &= HHER

AT ZFH N F AT EHE

2019 2018

—F-NEF —TN\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A AL

3 3

13. RE

EFEETEARNBE-T-NF=/H
=t BULEFENRARS(ZZ—

FrE|E)-

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per Share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profits for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$28,783,000 (2018: loss of approximately HK$175,632,000) and
the weighted average number of 262,870,558 (2018: 119,512,139)

ordinary Shares in issue during the year.

Weighted average number of ordinary Shares:

Issued ordinary Shares at beginning
of the year (note a)

Effect of Shares issued upon open offer /AR & M2 1TARD B S 28
AR An REE M 21T 8

Effect of Shares issued upon
Share subscription

Effect of Shares issued upon
business combination

Weighted average number of FRE BB MNEFIHH
ordinary Shares at end of year
(a) The beginning number of issued ordinary Share for 2018 is presented after the

effect of Share consolidation.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per Share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary Shares in issue during the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. The diluted earning/(loss) per
Share is the same as the basic earning/(loss) per Share for the year

ended 31 March 2019.

For the year end 31 March 2018, as disclosed in note 2.2, as the
loss per Share attributable to owners of the Company may not be
accurate, no representation is made by the board as to the accuracy
of the loss per share of the Company as of the date of approval of

these consolidated financial statements.
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REPEHTERR (HEa)

R A G M EITROH

SREF(&FE)

SREARBF,(EE)

AR EANELESREAETRN, (&
18) THRAN A R R AR FNEF 4
28,783,000 L (ZE— N\F : BFELH
175,632,000/ 70) R F AN D B1TE B
B NS 158 262,870,558 % (—Z— )\
0 119,612,139 %) 5+ &

HARMET IR (E5)
2019 2018
g% —zE
’000 '000
T T
254,234 45,380
- 5,349
- 68,783
8,637 -
262,871 119,612

(@) ERTEBEN T \FONFONHF
TIREtE B A T ER 27

BREEREA(EHE)
REBEZE_T—NFRZZE—/N\F=A
Z+—HIFE  WEDETZEESR
HLRR - BE_Z—NF=ZA=1+—
AR BREERT /(BB BE
REARZEF](E518) 48R -

REBE-Z-N\F=ZA=+—HL*F
B RME 2.2 EE - MR AR R
BARIEERBERGERE  BEHE
WEGEMBRERZA - EERALER
RAF SRR ERIERRER -



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BMEKRSRE

Fumiture
Machinery and Leasehold and Electronic
equipment  improvement fixtures equipment Total
HEME BRER
HERZE B BEkE BYH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx TiEr FiEx TiEr TiEr
Cost KA
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+EFNA—H E = 280 326 606
Additions AE - 693 176 - 869
Effect of foreign currency exchange EREENTE
differences - - 30 34 64
At 31 March 2018 and RZZ-NE=ZA=t-Bk
1 April 2018 “ET-\FNA-A - 693 486 360 1,639
Additions hE - - 5 - 5
Acquisitions through business EBEBANE (H:33)
combinations (note 33) 8,122 2,117 36 1,190 11,465
Effect of foreign currency exchange ERERNTE
differences 29 9 (20) (19 (1)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-AF=ZA=1—H 8,151 2,819 507 1,531 13,008
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FEA—H - - 35 45 80
Charged for the year FRZH - 73 70 91 234
Exchange adjustments EH AR - - 7 11 18
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-N\E=A=+-BR
- /\§¥mA-A - 73 112 147 332
Charged for the year FRZL 597 815 87 126 1,625
Effect of foreign currency exchange EREENTE
differences 1 - 6) 9 (14)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=Zf=+-H 598 888 193 264 1,943
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=1-H 7,653 1,931 314 1,267 11,065
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=f=1—H - 620 374 213 1,207
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At beginning of the year

Acquisitions through business
combinations (note 33)

At end of the year
Accumulated amortisation:
At beginning of the year
Charge for the year

At end of the year

Carrying amounts:
At 31 March

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

17. GOODWILL

Cost:
At beginning of the year
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 33)

At end of the year

Accumulated impairment losses:
At beginning of the year
Impairment losses

At end of the year

Carrying amounts:
At 31 March

16. \EEE
Customer relationships
BFEEB#E
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
A
REH) - -
BB S HTUE (KT5E33)
112,823 -
RER 112,823 -
EEtEes -
REH) - _
FRHBR 1,880
RER 1,880 -
BRMEME :
R=A=+—8 110,943 -
FREEI ARG B REMNEZE
WEROITEAY -
17. BE
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E=—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
BRAK
REH] - -
Uk HE B B8 2 | (B9 3E33) 48,430 -
INCEFN 48,430 -
EEHREEE :
REF) - -
REEE -
RER - -
BRMEE :
R=ZA=+—8” 48,430 -
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17.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) as follows:

Biological Business EXIESS

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) is
determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use
of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports specific to the
industry in which the CGU operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the CGU:

— Budgeted gross margin —TBEENE

— Long term growth rate — RHEIBER
— Pre-tax discount rate —BHRIITER

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development. The discount
rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant unit.

17. BHE(E)

ReELEM (BREE) 2RERBR

HENREAEEDEEATREELS

i ([REELEM])
2019 2018
—B-NEF —EFN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FEL
48,430 =

ReELSMMATKESEDERER
BEFEEET ETHEERMKR -
HAEERRSRETRN - BRATRATD
ERNE IR EHERRE D F R 5
AR -

TR ZESRETDRA T XA
ZEFHEREHSR - RSB ERETE
BETHERSELFEUMETERSS
TR — 2R -

TREJIREELBUMNTERR

2019 2018
—B-nE —E-N\E
% %

65% -

3% -

11.3% -

AREEEE TREEN R 2 BEMNE
EREEREFEAMIEZ FHEEN
R TR HARER O WAL 0 K TR AT 45 8
& - FRIRAZELERTA - WRREAR
BB 2 B E R o
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18.

19.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance
(note a)

Other receivables

Undertaking receivable from key
management personnel (Mr. Wang Bin
(“Mr. Wang”)

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost
Prepayments to suppliers (note b)

Other prepaid expenses
Rental deposit
Other deposits

e

18. ”BE
2019 2018
—2-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx T
R 2,373 7,115
R 1,128 -
RURK i 3,072 1,755
6,568 8,870
19. EWEZRHEMFIE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
EUE SR0E - kR EE
B (fisEa) 68,532 126,149
Eofth fE WK IE 6,051 2,674
EREEEBAS (EELE
(TEHE]D)) EHERIE
3,944 -
REERATENSREE
78,527 128,823
)L FE P VR O TR A BB
(HisEDb) 69,003 -
Em BN 495 -
Hews 1,296 879
Hitizs 50 443
149,371 130,145

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

20.

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

0-30 days 0Z30Hd

31-60 days 31£260H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days B0 H

Trade receivables are due within 60 to 90 days (2018: 60 to 90
days) from the date of billing.

At 31 March 2019, prepayment to suppliers of HK$69,003,000
(2018: Nil) were paid by the Group to suppliers for purchase of
mobile handsets which will be recognised as purchase after the
year end date upon the delivery of the mobile handsets to the
Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash at banks and on hand WITERRFEA S

Cash and cash equivalents in the AP BRRAR RS
consolidated statement of financial BERERAZES
position and the consolidated EBELEEY

statement of cash flows

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

19. BREZRAEMRIE(K)

(@ BREDAT
MNBERR - REXZAHMZE
5l 2 Fe s & 5 5108 (0 Rk e 18

1#) BRI AT T
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
27,789 =
17,253 10,874
8,033 15,118
15,457 100,157
68,532 126,149

FEWE B IE A R B A ERT 60
Z0HAEE(ZZ—)\F : 60
Z90H) e

b) R-Z—AF=ZA=+—8"
Mgt E W A TR R IE
69,003,000 ;o (= F — J\F ¢
)RR EGLEREE FH MmN F i
RN FAEEEEEEE A -
B A B R ER R -

20. RERBSEEYRAMGRERE
BH

(@ HRERRESEEWEE:

2019 2018
N %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
34,421 35,548
34,421 35,548

PITRS RENEG A RTEHA
AT BRI, -
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

At 1 April 2017
Changes from financing cash flows
Interest expense (note 9(a))

At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and
31 March 2019

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (note a)
Other payables
Accruals

Salary payable

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Receipt in advance

Other tax payable

R_ZE—+FMA—H

20.

SR (R 9(@)

RERASSEYRHMBRSRE
a8 (E)

(b) RETHEENEEHRK:

R=F-NF=A=+A—
—F2-\FmA-AR
—F-nE=A=+—8

e B 5508 (Mt a)
HAb N A

fERt &R

e S

REERATTEN S RAE

TBURIA
Hitb EATRIA
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Other borrowings
(note 22)
HifEE
(Mtzr22)
HK$'000

FHET

20,000
(20,576)
576

21. ENESREMENRIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —Z=—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT THTT
1,934 44,955
10,987 1,538
1,255 2,243
6,005 1,155
20,181 49,891
2,632 3,852
30,339 106
53,152 53,849




21.

22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade payables based on invoice date were as follows:

0-30 days 0Z30Hd

31-60 days 31£260H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days B0 H

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

OTHER BORROWINGS

On 28 April 2015, Alpha formally submitted an indicative restructuring
proposal to the Provisional Liquidators. After arm’s length
negotiations among the parties, the Company, the Provisional
Liquidators and Alpha entered into a framework agreement on 5
June 2015 and amended and restated framework agreement dated
(the “Framework Agreement”) on 5 October 2015, pursuant to which
the parties have agreed on the principal terms of the proposed
restructuring and the Investor has been granted an exclusivity period
of 24 months from and inclusive of 3 July 2015 for the restructuring
of the Group.

By the order of the High Court dated 26 June 2015 and sealed by
the High Court on 2 July 2015, the High Court approved, amongst
others, the Company and the Provisional Liquidators to enter into the
Framework Agreement.

21. ENESRHEMESTRIE(E)
(@) ERERDHT
RIRERKR - REXZAHHA2
P2 B BEAERR DN
T~
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
1,654 20,709
= 17,751
280 6,495
1,934 44,955
FTE R E 5 5E & H h 3R
BEAR—FARAIRER AU
ABIEESKEIE -
22, HifEE

RZZT—RFMA=+/\H * Alpha [
BREEBALNIE2EAEE - £F
FAFEEE  AAR) - BEEBA S
Alpha i —Z—AFNARHFIL T
B WEINEYAHA-T—T
FrARBZEBRE(RERZED -
Bt EAMTEREA 2 T BIRFUER
e MEEBRCEGLTE-ZS— 1T
+tA=B(RE%A) LM 24 1 A Hb 1%
PRER - ASAEE#EITEA -

FBESERAMA-T—HEFAR
—HRAZERSS REEERN T
—BFLA-AAERA  BHERI
AR FIBERE BB AT TR -
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22. OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

With the sanction from the High Court, the SPVs, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, were set up after the appointment
of the Provisional Liquidators for the purpose of restructuring
and continuation of the business of the Group. The Investor and
Perfect Major, on 5 June 2015 entered into a working capital facility
agreement pursuant to which the Investor agreed to provide a
working capital facility of up to HK$20,000,000 (“Working Capital
Facility”) to the Group for the continuation of its business operations.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had drawndown an amount of
HK$20,000,000 under the agreement. The amount was secured
by a floating charge and the share charge over the entire issued
share- capital of HK Rich Technology Company Limited, bearing
interest at 2% per annum, with a term of 2 years, and shall become
immediately due and payable to the investor on the earliest to occur
of (a) the date on which the Framework Agreement is terminated
but not if the termination occurred due to completion of the Revised
Proposal occurring and (b) the date following two years from the date
of the working capital facility agreement. The drawn down amount
of HK$20,000,000 was repaid on 28 February 2018. The interest
payable as at 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$1,086,000
(2018: approximately HK$1,086,000) which is included in accruals

and other payables.

23. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

At beginning of the year REH]

Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries % BU B A TRE

(note 33) (fH3E33)
Interest on financial gurarantee BITEER Z R B

Effect of foreign currency exchange INE B R R
differences
At the end of the year RER
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22.

23.

Hittfd& ()

BIESZEOBE - RSB AR
RE% ARBRIERBNRAR (A
ARRIZEEMBRAR) UEHAE
EREECEREFEE - KEER
Perfect Major R —Z—RENARBE]
V—BREECHME NS BHIEEE
B = M B2 & =3E 20,000,000 7
TREEEcME((BEESRE])
FASEABELEER RNZT—+
FZA=+—H AEESZEZHE
T8N 74 %20,000,000/8 7T ° %4 FEH
EBBENRHEAR AN I TR
REFENRL RO IRERIR - IBF
FEo%sHE - BRI A2F - RN
LTHREEMAER SRR R EEE
i (@) ERBER L2 A (EERK
1BETEZE TR M SER B ZEL L - AR
THLAE) : R(b)EBEES A HER
HREB MM 2 HHA - 20,000,000 74 7T
CRHSEER_ZE-NE-_A=TN
AfEE R-_T—hAF-ZA=+—H2Z
FERTFI B A49 1,086,000 7T (ZZ— )\
F : 491,086,000/ 7T) + JhET AFERTE
B REAEMAFRER -

BMBREREE

2019 2018

S —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiB7 FHT

22,051 -
84 -

79 -

22,214 -




23.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Zoken Biology, a newly
acquired subsidiary with details set out in note 33, has previously
entered into 2 financial guarantee contracts with financial
guarantee liabilities of RMB18,921,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,051,000) recognised at date of acquisition. As the borrowers
for the financial guarantee contracts defaulted and did not settle
the outstanding liabilities at date of acquisition and at the end of the
reporting period, the Group is accordingly liable to the guarantees.
The guarantees comprise of the below:

(i) Zoken Biology had provided financial guarantee to a bank,
Shanghai Pudong Shenzhen, in November 2014 in respect of
banking facilities granted by Shanghai Pudong Shenzhen to
Shenzhen Botai, a former shareholder of Zoken Biology, with
the guarantee amount of RMB20,000,000 (the “First Financial
Guarantee”).

As Shenzhen Botai defaulted in repayment of the bank
loans to Shanghai Pudong Shenzhen, Shanghai Pudong
Shenzhen applied to the court in November 2015 to claim
against Shenzhen Botai, Zoken Biology and other financial
guarantee providers (collectively the “Defendant”) in respect of
the outstanding amount due to Shanghai Pudong Shenzhen
and the court issued the court order in February 2017 which
judged that the Shenzhen Botai should repay the principal of
approximately RMB14,474,000 and interest of approximately
RMB1,388,000 to Shanghai Pudong Shenzhen within 10 days
from the court order, and ordered that Zoken Biology and other
financial guarantee providers to be jointly liable for the above
liability. The court further issued an execution order to the
Defendant in July 2017 as the Defendant failed to fulfill the legal
obligations by the due date. Further on 9 October 2018, the
court issued another execution order to the Defendant to order
the payment of approximately RMB15,973,000 and Zoken
Biology is still liable for the liability.

In respect of the First Financial Guarantee, Shenzhen Botai
and its beneficial owner (the “Beneficial Owner”) signed a
letter of undertaking to Great Empire Group (defined in note
33) on 22 December 2018 to irrevocably undertake that (i) the
Former Shareholder and Beneficial Owner would fully settle the
outstanding amounts by 30 June 2019 or request Shanghai
Pudong Shenzhen to release the guarantee liability of Zoken
Biology; and (ii) Former Shareholder and Beneficial Owner
would indemnify in full the loss that Zoken Biology would suffer
from the guarantee liability.

23.

MBEREE (R

REE-_T—NE=ZA=1+—HBL=F
B wREM(—RAKEN AR - #F
1B E AT 51 33) 5L AT R 32 /N 10 BA TS PR AR
AH - RUERE B ERERM S ER
B EARK18,921,000T(HHERL
22,051,000 70) - BRI B ERELD
B TR 40 I 30 S5 (B A UK BE B Bk
BENABLRRRESR  AEERK
B SERAEST - ERBEATE
18 :

() AR -_Z—NFE+— A%
FEBERFIETREEDN—
BRI R FIEENIRITEER
FEHEERYREM ISR -
R & & A A R 20,000,000 7T
([E—HyBERD -

R RYITEREREEL R G
BRIEERITER - B8HR
FIR—E—RF+— ARAR
B SUEN BEHERERININ R
EEFES RIS - @4
R Em I R REHRE (HEA
[WEDRERE MARRZZ
—tFZABEERES - R
FINERENETES AT 10 B
AE_EHRRIEERSHA
R#14,474,000 T R F S HAR
#1,388,0007T * WenS LY
K E A BA TS PR IR (2 R A
Pl EE - AREERERIET
BEEITAZET  FRAZT
—tFLAE—FREEENH
TS - MN_ZE—NEFE+AIBE
ARAEEEE S —HTS
e AR 15,973,000 7T
LMD aEAERT -

ME—MYFBKERNE - RIE
ZREEEHEBEAN(ERZER
ARZZE-—NF+ZA=+=
ARAAZEE (FEEWESS) T
ERGA K - ] e A (i) BT
BRERESHEBABRZZ—N
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23. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

Furthermore, Mr. Wang, the key management personal
of Biological Business who was the ultimate beneficial
shareholder of Great Empire Group prior to the Acquisition,
signed a letter of undertaking to the Great Empire Group on
22 December 2018 to irrevocably undertake that he would
guarantee the liability of Shenzhen Botai and Beneficial Owner
arose from the above-mentioned undertaking if Shenzhen
Botai and Beneficial Owner failed to fully repay all outstanding
balances or fail to release Zoken Biology from the guarantee

liability by 30 June 2019.

At 31 March 2019, the amount recognised for the First
Financial Guarantee is RMB15,973,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$18,682,000).

(i) Zoken Biology has provided a financial guarantee to an
individual lender in April 2017 in respect of loan facilities
granted to a company which Zoken Biology had equity
interests, namely Shenzhen Zhongkang, prior to the
Acquisition, for the loan amount of RMB2,000,000 (the

“Second Financial Guarantee”).

As Shenzhen Zhongkang defaulted in repayment of the loan to
the creditor, the creditor applied to the court in March 2019 to
claim against Shenzhen Zhongkang, Zoken Biology and other
financial guarantee providers in respect of the outstanding

principal and the interest accrued.

Pursuant to the terms in sale and purchase agreement for
acquisition of Great Empire Group, Mr. Wang irrevocably
undertake that he would be responsible for such liability.

At 31 March 2019, the amount recognised for the Second
Financial Guarantee is RMB3,020,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$3,532,000).
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23.

BEEREE (&)
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BEoh - ERE(EVEBNEEE
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RZZBE—hE=A=+—0H 5
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AR #15,973,000 7T (185 A 4
18,682,000 7T) °

hREAEYR —E—LFMARK
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24. DEFERRED TAX

a)

b)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities:

At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33)
Credited to profit or loss (note 10(a))

At 31 March 2019

Deferred tax assets not recognised
As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of

24.

RZZ—tFMA—-R -

U BB FT B 2 B (P EE33)
s AEZ (HEE10(a)

R-E-N&E=ZA=+—H

IEFERIR

EHRELER AR E
FRNERA P BRAR AR ETH
HEENERED REBIAT

BEHBEERE
Intangible
asset through
acquisition
BRWBEREE
HK$’000
TAT
—T-)\F
ZA=+—-BR=Z-/\FMA—A -
28,206
(470)
27,736
b) FRERZELEHEBEEE
RE-—NF=ZA=+—8"
AEEBBERDBHREEBEERD

approximately HK$36,898,000 (2018: HK$2,537,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax was recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2019 (2018: nil) since it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Expiry dates
of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

Deferred tax assets not recognised
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

Unrecognised tax losses will RIERBIIEEE KR
expire in: AT R SIA

2020 ZECTF

2021 T —F

Unrecognised tax losses without EEEIE 2 RHERTIE
expiry date 518

36,898,000 L ( = F — J\ & :
2,537,000 7t ) 7] {5 §4 K 2R
wmh e RZE—NEF=A=+—
B BARAEERE R AR RE
B2 351 1] BE HH IR R 2R JE AR AR R
LABBFIEEE - EIEEHE
FHRETBERARFPER(ZE
—\F ) - KAERTEEBIED
BT ¢

REERAIELEN HEE
RERIRAELARGIATIRR
TR

2019 2018
—E-NF —=-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
7,272 -
26,741 -
34,031 -
2,885 2,537
36,898 2,537

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC

subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2019, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2018: nil) for taxes that would the payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain Group’s subsidiaries.

25. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.
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26.

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Amount due to a subsidiary

Net current assets
NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RINERRIZIRE

REEE

JRE W Y B8 2 ) 0R
R RIRTTHER

REBEE
JEET B A R E A B R
JER — R 8~ R F0R

REBEEFE
BEEFE

IR AR 1
BeA

[t

s

26. AFBEZBBAARRTT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
128,441 1
52,436 30,195
4,077 27,529
56,513 57,724
12,442 753

1 1

12,443 754
44,070 56,970
172,511 56,971
380,298 316,471
(207,787) (259,500)
172,511 56,971
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27. BEARRE
(@  The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances (@ AEBLGEEZSKNSFYIHEF
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set RERNERHENGEERE T
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details £ o ANA IR M E B D R FE
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of NEFRNEABHIRT
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set X
out below:
The Company ARAF
Share
based
Share payments  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RAZA
R R ER 1 2EEE m@ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THT TR
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFWA—H 549,312 610 (55,973) 493,949
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZAFRLE
loss for the year - - (753,067) (758,067)
Expense arisen from open offer ARBEELMAS (382) - - (382)
Share option forfeited BRERS M - (610) 610 -
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\F=A=1+—-H
1 April 2018 k=ZE-NENA—H 548,930 - (808,430) (259,500)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZABELESE
loss for the year - - (1,397) (1,397)
Shares issued for acquisition BN B A R BITRRG
of subsidiaries (note 27(b)(v)) (K 27(0)) 53,110 - - 53,110
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-hE=A=1+-8H 602,040 - (809,827) (207,787)
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Share capital

Authorised:

At 1 April 2017, ordinary Shares of

US$0.008 each
Share consolidation (note (i)

Increase in authorised Share capital

(note (ii))

At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018

and 31 March 2019, ordinary Shares

of US$ 0.16 each

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2017, ordinary Shares of

US$0.008 each
Share consolidation (note (i)
Open offer (note (iii))
Share subscription (note (iv))

At 31 March 2018, ordinary Shares of

US$0.16 each
Shares issued for acquisition
of subsidiaries (note (v))

At 31 March 2019, ordinary Shares of

US$0.16 each

Notes:

(i) Share consolidation

On 17 October 2017, the Company completed the Share
consolidation by every twenty existing shares of US$0.008 each

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

EE

RZZE—+FNA—A
FREE0.008 ETH L@

BRAA A BF (IR ()

SETE BRI A0 (B3 (i)

RZE-N\E=A=+—8"
“E-\FMA-HK
—T-hFE=A=+—-H
FREBE.16 TH LB

EELE o

RZE—+FNA—H
FRE(E0.008 £ TH LB

BRRA B (BEE ()
NRBE (HE i)

R 17 3288 (B & (iv)

RZE-NE=ZA=+-R
FREB16ETMHEBMK
FURBMERRBTHRS
(HF5E )

RZZE-NF=A=1+—H
BREE0.16ETHLBMK

consolidated into one consolidated shares of US$0.16 each.

(if) Increase in authorised Share capital

On 17 October 2017, the Company’s authorised Share capital
increased from US$10,000,000 to US$100,000,000, divided into
625,000,000 consolidated Shares of US$0.16 each by the creation of

562,500,000 new consolidated Shares.

27. BXRNRfHME (&)

(b) BRA
Number Amount Amount
of shares equivalent to equivalent to
HERUT HERUT
RIVEER E¥eH E%eH
Us$ HK$
e BT
1,250,000,000 10,000,000 77,800,000
(1,187,500,000) - -
562,500,000 90,000,000 700,200,000
625,000,000 100,000,000 778,000,000
762,687,662 6,101,500 47,469,672
(724,5583,279) - -
15,253,753 2,440,602 18,987,880
200,846,247 32,135,399 250,013,408
254,234,383 40,677,501 316,470,960
50,842,000 8,134,720 63,826,307
305,076,383 48,812,221 380,297,267
BHEE
0] & Bf
RZZE—t+tF+A++H AR
A RS ER0.008% T2 &

]

—TERREERNA G RER0.16
Enz—BRattBRhzBHA

EETERAR
WRZZT—tF+A++H"
NN A iR 1 3% 562,500,000
B A fRm BEER
X #110,000,000% 7T # 0
Z100,000,000% t( 9 A
625,000,000 f% & % {50.16 %
TLZE PR

PR AR ER AT o 2019 F3R
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b)  Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) Open offer
On 24 November 2017, the Company conducted an open offer on
the basis of two offer Shares for every five consolidated shares by the
qualifying shareholders. Approximately 15,254,000 offer Shares were
issued at the US$0.16 offer price, and net proceeds of approximately
US$2,441,000 (equivalent to HK$18,988,000).

(iv) Share subscription
Pursuant to the Share Subscription Agreement 1 and Share
Subscription Agreement 2, Alpha and Tongfang subscribed
188,134,528 consolidated shares and 12,711,719 consolidated
shares on 27 November 2017 at the price of US$0.16 per offer share
respectively.

(v) Shares issued for acquisition of subsidiaries
On 29 January 2019, 50,842,000 ordinary Shares were allotted to the
vendor of the acquisition of subsidiaries at the fair value of HK$2.3
per share, of which HK$63,827,000 was credited to share capital and
HK$53,110,000 was credited to share premium.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium account
Share premium arose from the issuance of share by the
Company at prices in excess of their par value, and may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares. The
application of the share premium is governed by section
40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

(i)  Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to Directors and employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based payments
(note 2.3 (K)(ii)).

(iii)  Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.3(0).
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(@

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Reserve fund

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their profit after tax (after offsetting prior year
losses) to the statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital. Transfers to this
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends
to shareholders. Upon approval by relevant authorities,
the statutory reserve can be utilised to offset the
accumulated losses or to increase the paid-up capital of
the subsidiary, provided that the balance after such issue
is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debts included trade and other payables, financial guarantee
liabilities and tax payables less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (that is,
share capital, share premium, retained earnings, other reserves
and any non-controlling interests) and includes some forms of
subordinated debts.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio at the lowest as possible, in order to secure access
to finance at a reasonable cost. The net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

27.
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27.

28.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Capital management (Continued)
During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2018. The gearing ratios at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

Total debt
Less: cash and cash equivalents

BfEGH
B ReERREEED

Net debt BEFE

o

Total equity and adjusted capital Tt AR RE RAC AR AR

Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FAEHSHER AL X

According to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, at least
25% of the Shares should be held in the hands of the public.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme 2010 (the “2010
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Group’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, confirmed
employees of the Group, the controlling shareholders and their
associates. The Scheme became effective on 11 February 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2010 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the 2010 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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2019 2018
—E-AF —E)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHRT TR
76,487 64,830
(34,421) (35,548)
42,066 29,282
256,576 110,940
16.4% 26.4%
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates (including discretionary trust in which
any connected persons are beneficiary), are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5.0 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The grant of 2010 Scheme shall be
made to a participant by letter in such form as the Remuneration
Committee (“RC”), a committee of directors who are duly authorized
and appointed by the Board to administer the 2010 Scheme for the
time being pursuant to the Code of Corporate Governance under SGX
Listing Manual, may from time to time determine.

Subject to the provisions of the 2010 Scheme, the Bermuda
Companies Act, the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, the RC may, when making the offer, impose any
conditions, restrictions or limitations in relation thereto as it may at its
absolute discretion think fit.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the RC,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on a business day as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange or the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by
the SGX-ST; (i) the average closing prices of the Company’s shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
or the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by SGX-ST for the five consecutive business
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of
a share on the offer date.

Under the 2010 Scheme, if the share options remain unexercised
after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the share options
expire. Share options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group
before the share options vest. In the event that the grantee ceases to
be a participant for any reason (other than on his death) including the
termination of his employment or engagement on one or more of the
grounds specified in the 2010 Scheme, the options granted to such
grantee will lapse on the date of such cessation (to the extent not
already exercised) and will not be exercisable unless the RC otherwise
determines to grant an extension (which shall not be more than 1
month from the date of cessation) at the absolute discretion of the
RC in which event the grantee may exercise the options within such
period of extension.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. BRESTEI(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2010 BIE T —TFHEIRNFRERITER
Scheme during the year: FEARMELN T -
2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Numberof  exercise Number of Date of
price options price options grant Vesting period  Exercise period
BN “E-N\%
ETH BRE  mETS Bl
%8 #8 e #E RLpH HE iy
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Share Option 1 B 1

To an executive director, ~ FAHITEE - EHITES
non executive directors R EEBER M

and key managements
At 1 April RmA—H - - 0.72 9,000,000 6Jan2012  vested on 6 Jan 2013 to
6 Jan 2013 10 Feb 2020
e “F-=%
—AKRE —RA~BEB —ARBZE
Sl
ZAtH
Forfeited during the year ~ RERRY - - (0.72)  (9,000,000)
At 31 March W=A=t+-8 - - - -
Share Option 2 BERRE2
To non-executive directors  [ZEH{TE EEH
At 1 April RUA—H - - 1.1 600,000 19 Mar2012  vested on 19 Mar 2013 to
19 Mar 2013 10 Feb 2020
- RIT-=f ZT-=%
=AthE  =ZAthA =RthA
] it Sk 3
ZRtH
Forfeited during the year ~ RERZU - - (1.11)  (600,000)
At 31 March B=F=+-H - - - -

146 ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2019



28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the options granted had been forfeited due to
the leaving of the employees for the year ended 31 March 2018.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had Nil share options (2018: nil) outstanding under the 2010 Scheme,
which represented Nil (2018: nil) of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, as disclosed in note 2.2, on
the basis that the relevant books and records are either lost or are
incomplete before the restructuring of the Group, no representation
is made by the Board as to the completeness, existence and
accuracy of the share option scheme as at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements.
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29. SUBSIDIARIES

20. [MIB2AHA

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 were as R-ZBE—NF=A=+—8  TEKE
follows: ANRIKIFIBAT -
Place of
establishment/ Issued and
incorporation and fully paid up/ Percentage of paid up/issued
Name of subsidiary business registered capital capital held by the company Principal activities
KL/ ERAIRER/ RARFBERR/
WRARER ALY ES S EMER BETNRAEHLL TEER
Directly Indirectly
B i
H K Rich Technology International Company Hong Kong 1 ordinary 100% - Sales and distribution of mobile
Limited share handsets and their components
EAENRRERERAT ik 1RERR 100% - HERABFERATH
MIERGCEERERERATC PRC Registered - 100%  Provision of management services
capital of to the Group
RMB1,000,000
P AMERARE - 100% AASEREERRE
1,000,0007¢
Smart Tone International Limited Hong Kong 100 100% - Provision of management services
ordinary shares to the Group
EERRERAR B 100 R EER 100% - AAREREERRR
Great Empire International Group Limited BVI 10,000 100% - Investment holdings
ordinary shares
of US$100 each
RERZES 10000R5REHE 100% - REBR
100 FTh)E AR
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29.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. KMIBAR (&)

Place of
establishment/ Issued and
incorporation and fully paid up/ Percentage of paid up/issued
Name of subsidiary business registered capital capital held by the company Principal activities
HI/HR  ERORER/ KAAMEEHR/
MEARER R BB RER EfER BEANRRENL TEER
Directly Indirectly
Ef Rt
Hong Kong Great Empire Medical Holdings Hong Kong 20,000,000 100% - Investment holdings
Limited ordinary shares
ERREBERRARAA B& 20,000,000 100% - REZR
ABEENE (R BERAR PRC  Registed capital 100% - Investment holdings
of RMB1,500,000
e HEMERARE 100% - REER
1,500,0007¢
Zoken Biology PRC  Registed capital 100% - Provision of biotechnology and
of RMB50,000,000 biological gene technology
technical services
mREY HE HMER 100% - REEVMERRENERFERE
AE#50,000,0007C
@ This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC @ OB R AR AR P B A K S A
law. EEERE -
At 31 March 2019 and 2018, there is no subsidiary of the Group RZZE-NFR=ZFE-NF=ZA=+—
which has material non-controlling interests. A AEBEMEAEANEARBAEE
RIEER RS ©
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30. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables FE U B 5 3RI8 I E Ath FE WK TE
Cash and bank balance e RIRTTHEH
Financial assets at amortised cost REENASRNSRMEE
(previously classified as loans (RSP BEARERK
and receivables) FEURIE)
Financial liabilities ==L
Trade and other payables FERTE 23038 K 5 th FE S 5018
Financial guarantee liability HISEREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEN AR SR AaE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(@) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating assigned by
international credit-agencies, for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 46% (2018:
60%) and 84% (2018: 99%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

150 ALPHA PROFESSIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2019

30. @I EER

2019 2018
—s-hE —F-N\fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
78,527 128,823
34,421 35,548
112,948 164,371
20,181 49,891
27,736 -
47,917 49,891
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 60 to 90 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 90 days past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets as at 31 March 2019:

3. TREREERESRIANAAE
(%)

(a)

FERRE (&)

FEWEZ5%E ()
BEREEYMERERETIE
BB EPETENEER
o ZEHEETREFPBEE
BRMRIA 2 o8 N B BT 2 B
ENTEBEP ZHEERAR
EREPEEZRERSE - B
BHHIARERAHEE 60290
RAAZIH o RSB 90 KIA
L2 EBARGENRERERE
RiZ - DA EREMEIMEER -
—RWME  AEETEESKE
EE B -

REEERBBERGEN2H
B EEFRSEAEREKES
AN E RS - HRAERER
BAEFEBEBLRITEFRTTR
BEPORMBEEXAERAEE
£ BUEE-TEOAEED
REPRIE R B R -

TREHRAEER -_Z-NF=
A=t—BEEBEERRMEWR
BHRBARAWEERBEER
BrER

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER BRI EiEEE
% HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Current (not past due) EH (W EmER) 0.0% 52,062 -
0-30 days past due BWHEI0OZE30H 0.0% 1,013 -
31-60 days past due #HI31 =60 H 0.0% 15,457 -
61-90 days past due #wHEI61 290 H 0.0% - -
More than 90 days past due  #@HIQ0 HLA 100.0% - -
68,532 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

BEHMEREENBE2FZER
BRERHE - ZELEREE
SeEUR W SR HIR 2 IR - R
LSRR 55 [ P 3R A 2 FE WU IR TR
PEEHNZEERR =52
ZERETHE -
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Comparative information under IAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see
note 2.3(f)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018). At 31
March 2018, no trade receivables were determined to be
impaired. The aging analysis of trade receivables that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired BEAR B BRI (E
1-30 days past due BEI1Z=30H
31-60 days past due WHAIZ1 E60H
61-90 days past due wHEI61 E 90 H
Over 90 days past due BHI90 B A

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been no
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.
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ZE-NF
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Comparative information under IAS 39 (Continued)

The movements in the impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

At beginning of the year REF

Transferred under the Scheme of  RIEZHEEt 2D s
Arrangement (Note) (Bf3E)

At end of the year RER

Note: Under the Scheme of Arrangement, the amounts were transferred
out.

Liqudity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to the parent company’s
board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

31.

TREREENRERTANAIAE
(%)

()

FERRE (F)

RIZEIRRE 71 E B 39T HILL B
=ZH ()

FEURE 55 TERREZ E)
U

2019 2018
—E-nE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
- 249,853
- (249,853)

BRE

(b)

IR S SEDEEL -

REEEEME

AEENNEBE2EERAES
MRS ERE SRR AR
EITEMREMERESE - AR
NIEHREF R - EFBEHRF
MEEGHE - AEBEZBER
EMERARSPESTRLLHE
SR ZIEN - AERER TR
MRSEBEUARMEESREE
BSRRMNAKRERRE BN
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

31. cREREEFREMIAENAAE
(#8)

(b)

nREBEESRE (&)
TRHAJAEEZIFTESRE
ERRERR BT ROHR -
ZEHRTENBRIIREBEALOR
FRHRESRE(BERMAEHNE
SHEMFENR  RMAFEBH
o ARBENREHRZIRITH
FE) A RAEE A GEAN R Z
RPAHEE -

2019
“E-NE

More than Total Carrying
1 year but contractual amount
Within lessthan2  undiscounted at 31 March
On demand 1 year years cash flows 2019
RZZ-NF
BB—F AHEEE  ZA=t-R
REX -FR ETREME BRERELE WiREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER T TET TiEn
Trade and other payables JENE 530E R E A E 1,255 16,992 - 20,181 20,181
Financial quarantee liability HHREREE 27,736 - - 27,736 27,736
28,991 16,992 - 47917 47917

2018

—ZT-N\F
More than Total Carrying
1 year but contractual amount
Within lessthan2  undiscounted at 31 March
On demand 1 year years cash flows 2019
RZZ-NF
BR—F ANEXME  ZA=t-8
REX —FR  BTHEME RenEgE MEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThT TARL T T
Trade and other payables ENESFEREENTE 2,243 47,648 - 49,891 49,891
Interest rate risk () FIERERE

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from variable rate cash and bank balances.

The Group’s bank balances are carried at low interest rates and
the interest income thereon is not significant.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk

(i)

(if)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
United States dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date.

EWE 5508 R At R
ReRRTHEHR
ENESTRR A BENHE

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balance
Trade and other payables

Net exposure arising from recognised CRAEEREBELH
assets and liabilities FRME

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and accumulated losses)
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies.

3. TREREERESRTIANAAE
(%)

(d)

B b

) ERZEEEE
AEEmY 2 E¥ER T
EXREREEMEL R

WA - BN RERRS
e REEB VIRINE
(AR BEFEBZNEER
BN B RHE - BEL
FHRB BB IR RE
TRARY - REBE K
ENBERTRINBEXSE
BINE - AR R HIE T
ST RECR P E BR D AL
FFRMER AR R APKF o

TRFIAREERN RS
RAEHBER 2SS
vz E¥FHEZ DR
BERREMELEZEE
R - BRARREE 2
BMORFEREERAZANH
ERBERBIT UE2
SIZH e

Exposure of foreign currencies (expressed in HK$)

HNERKB (BTHIR)

2019 2018
—E-NF —EN\F
uss RMB us$ RMB
ES AR® e N
53,780 - 126,148 -
13,159 6 22,401 5
- - (44,956) -
66,939 6 103,593 5
(i)  HFEDHT

TREINBEBRAE
1] T o 25K [ e IMEE [
TEHRZALRES (R
RFTE B AR 2 EARES
) B AR L ERR TR 1 A
(R 25HER) BE £ H BBy
2o pgitms  ElRRK
BT RETHBRIE X
TEREXTHEMEMBE
BOEMEEESMZE
BEAFE -
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the group entities’ profit or loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2018.

(e) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 March 2018 and 2019

32. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years R—FRERAFA

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to two years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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d E¥RRGE

(i)  HREEDH(E)
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B EBNEEEEREN
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BRIERE o
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ERBRHSRTE - 2
R =T \ERRNE
AT o

() UFRDABEIRNEMEER
BENLAE
RZBE-NFER-_ZT-NF=H
=t—R  KEBEZKAREH
BXANS B & Bt T AR B E
NAEWESERER

KEEE
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33.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 29 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Great Empire International Group Limited (“Great Empire
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Great Empire
Group”), which is engaged in Biological Business, for a consideration
of HK$116,937,000 (50,842,000 Share consideration at the fair value
of HK$2.3 per share and assumed the EIT payable for indirect share
transfer of subsidiary established in PRC). The acquisition has entitled
the Group to enter into the biological industry.

Since the acquisition, Great Empire Group contributed
HK$13,904,000 to the Group’s revenue and HK$4,895,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been HK$434,872,000 and HK$54,077,000, respectively.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are
as follows:

33.

ES N

R=ZZT—NAF—A=1+N1B £%£H
LA {8 116,937,000 7t (R R R B S
f%2.37% J£50,842,000 % X (B K & ¥
AR B AR S B B B A B T B IR 1) B
K FEH D EFTS ) Ui Great Empire
International Group Limited ([ Great
Empire International |) & E B R 7] (4
T8 5[ Great Empire £ | )y 2 B B 31T
IR - AR EEYMRHRER - Wi
FIESNEEEANEMRIRITE -

BUEENUR  KRESEREZE=Z—N
FZA=T—BLEFERAIEEEB
Uk %5 138,904,0007% 7T & & B & 0F 4 F
4,895,000/ 7T °
BEREBAHNFEY#ET AXE
BRAFEARA RS TSR ER
434,872,000 % 7T & 54,077,000 47T ©

Ay ERcEERBBNT

Property, plant and equipment (note 15)
Intangible assets (note 16)

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Financial guarantee liabilities (note 23)
Deferred tax liability (note 24)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Goodwill on acquisition (note 17)

Consideration

Satisfied by:

Consideration from allotment of shares
EIT payable assumed by the Group for indirect
share transfer of subsidiary established in PRC

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

Fair value
ARE
HK$’000
FET
W -~ BRE R (HTEE15) 11,465
mEE (M3 16) 112,823
TE 3,117
FEUS B 5 508 I H i FE U OB 20,848
ReERASEED 12,187
BB 5 30a R E b S 50E (30,173)
WIS EREE (HE23) (22,051)
EEFIEBE (H:E24) (28,206)
BRARBEYIRZ AIHAFEELE 80,010
PRUREE R 2 PR (fRE17) 48,430
RE 128,440
ATFIA R
BoZ AR BB 116,937
A5 [ T A R B K S O B BB R )

MERMOERNENDEMEH 11,503
128,440

WEEATEEMRS R AR
FriigR e RIS SEMEH 12,187
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs (included in administrative expenses)

amounted to HK$1,361,000.

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high profitability
of the acquired business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

The trade and other receivables comprise gross contractual amounts
due of HK$55,246,000, of which amount due from key management
personnel of HK$34,398,000 was expected to be uncollectable at the

date of acquisition.

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with the related parties during the year.

Mr. Wang Bin (“Mr. Wang”), a key managerment personnel of a
principal subsidiary of the Group, provided undertaking to the Group

in respect of the followings:

(i) for the Group’s rights to use two patents licensed by an
independent third party licensor and are currently under the
court restriction order, Mr. Wang irrevocably undertakes that
he will communicate with the pledgee to obtain the court
restricted patents and to transfer or grant to Zoken Biology
at nil consideration, or in case the court restricted patents
would be put into auction by court order, he will try to acquire
the court restricted patents at the auction and grant to Zoken

Biology at nil consideration upon successful bid;

(i) for the contingent liabilities resulting from Zoken Biology’s
use of court restricted patents referred above, Mr. Wang
irrevocably undertakes that he will bear the liability and repay

the amount to Zoken Biology;

(i) for the Group’s liability of the penalty and surcharge charged
on defaulted tax liability payable by Zoken Biology, Mr. Wang
irrevocably undertake that he will bear the liability and repay the

amount to Zoken Biology;

(iv)  for the Group’s liability arose from the financial guarantee
provided by Zoken Biology, Mr. Wang irrevocably undertakes
that he will bear the liability and repay the amount to Zoken

Biology;
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34.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(v) for the Group’s contingent liability or other loss suffered arose
from the failure of registration on time of share transfer for four
companies disposed of by Zoken Biology prior to 29 January
2019, Mr. Wang irrevocably undertakes that he will bear the
liability and repay the amount or loss suffered by Zoken Biology
to Zoken Biology; and

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10 is as
follows:

34. ERBEALRS (E)

V)  EARBERRABRBEIRER =
ZE-—NF—-AZ+hBZRRE
BRI H &M PURE QR A
P& 17 88 8 T 2= A B H A0 S R
5 ERATAREE AR - B
BAEREREFREMEES
REMEZWEL &

AEETEERABZHM (BIEHE
PN TARRESE KM 10 e
NFPETHESHFREZSB)NT

2019 2018

—B-REF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Short-term employee benefits mEEERT 5,060 4,140
Post-employment benefits BER 2R A 36 -
5,096 4,140

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 9(a)).

The remuneration package for key management personnel of the
Group includes a profit incentive bonus scheme to reward the key
management personnel based on their performance.

FEaBEiTATEIAAR] R(RHE
9a)) °

FAEET2ERABZHHFERER

BAMABZRARNTIBZEIRABIESR
)z FIED AL S -
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35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

IFRS 16 Leases'

PR B 75 S AR 16 5% Gish=gl

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
BUPR B IS s 22 RIS 17 5% RBEL?

IFRIC 23

BRI s mEREEEgREF 285 PRS0 B2 32 09 TR E 1 2
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
BUFR B T s 2E R S8 3 5% (185]) KRR

Amendments to IFRS 9

BUFR B 15 s 2E R 2 9 5 (185T)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Joint Venture*

BUFR B A5 3R 2E R S8 10 5% S R & 5T 28
FE 285 (153])

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

BUFR 5T RIS 1 5% R B PR & 5t 42 R
%855 (1B7])

Amendments to IAS 19

BIFR & e R 1955 (18R])

Amendments to IAS 28

Definition of Material®

EAMER?

AHENERT - AEREORE"

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
T -AER T HFRMCFELE

REFEEABENFHAER

35.

K ERR& Et RIS 23 5% (BAT) !

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’
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Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
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Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23!
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35.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 2.3(e), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease.
The Group enters into leases as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish
between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue
to be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new accounting
model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2019. As allowed by IFRS 16, the Group plans to use the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply
the new definition of a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In addition,
the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the
new accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.
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35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach
for the adoption of IFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the comparative information. As
at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$893,000 as disclosed in note 32. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these

leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets,
the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be made upon
the initial adoption of IFRS 16 will not be material. However, the
expected changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statement from 2020

onwards.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The interpretation
requires an entity to determine whether uncertain tax positions are
assessed separately or as a group; and assess whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or

proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is
on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities

and assets is not a business.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a prepayment feature meets the solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) condition, the party exercising the option may pay or
receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment irrespective of
the reason i.e. prepayment features with negative compensation do
not automatically fail SPPI.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

IFR The amendments provide a new definition of material. The new
definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the following four
standards.
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35.

36.

37.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle (Continued)

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised
the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the
case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed
and undistributed profits.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity
borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control of a
business that is a joint operation, the entity applies the requirements
for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring
its previously held interest in the joint operation at fair value. The
previously held interest to be remeasured includes any unrecognised
assets, liabilities and goodwill relating to the joint operation.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates in, but
does not have joint control of, a joint operation that is a business
obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the entity does not
remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operation.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2019, the directors consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling parties of the Group to be Alpha and Mr. Yi Peijian and
Mr. Xiong Jianrui, respectively, the immediate controlling company is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Neither of them produces
financial statements available for public use.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 April 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. Further details of the changes in accounting policies are
disclosed in note 4.
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